
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island FL

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Aug 07 2025 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (None)

Invocation (Pastor Billy Register, True Life Church, Middleburg)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Clay County District Schools' Achievements

2. Recognition of Employee's Fifty Years of Service

Presenters

School Showcase (None)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment on Specific Agenda Items)

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

3. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

4. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

5. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on June 17, 2025 and Regular Meeting on June 26, 2025

2025 Jun 17 Workshop.pdf

2025 Jun 26 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

6. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 8_7_25.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

Page 1 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54941
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54897
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54904
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54903
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54892
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-jun-17-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-jun-26-regular-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54902
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-8_7_25.pdf


7. C3 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

August 2025 Student Travel.pdf

8. C4 - Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Eagle Harbor Association
Regarding Usage of District Recreational Facilities.

Instruction-Professional Development

9. C5 - 2025-2026 Professional Learning Advisory Council Membership

2025-2026 PDAC Committee Board Approval.pdf

Instruction-Secondary

10. C6 - Agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Career Acad, Embry-Riddle Aero Univ and School Board of Clay County
2025-2028

260005 Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University ERAU Agreement 2025-2028.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

11. C7 - University of Florida Affiliation Agreement- School Psychologist EdS student placement

250185 University of FL Intership MOU.pdf

Business Affairs

12. C8 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026

08.07.25 - 25-26 Allocation Summary.pdf

13. C9 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

08.07.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary.xlsx - 2024-25.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

14. C10 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - July, 2025

DELETION REPORT JULY, 2025.pdf

DELETION ANALYSIS JULY 2025- 2026 - Sheet1.pdf

Operations

15. C11 - MOU Between Clay County District Schools and the Clay County Sheriff’s Office to provide access to the
Chris Hixon, Coach Aaron Feis, and Coach Scott Beigel Guardian Program.

260006 MOU CCSD and CCSO Guardian Program 3yr 8.7.25.pdf

Operations-Facilities

16. C12 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Fleming Island High School HVAC Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 FIH HVAC Repair Replacement

17. C13 - Final Completion of Clay High School Roof Repair/Replacement

Certificate of Final Completion for CHS Roof Repair Replacement

18. C14 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Keystone Heights High School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for KHS Security Lighting
Page 2 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54927
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/august-2025-student-travel.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54942
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54942
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54895
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-2026-pdac-committee-board-approval.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54926
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54926
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/260005-embry-riddle-aeronautical-university-erau-agreement-2025-2028.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54943
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/250185-university-of-fl-intership-mou.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54912
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/080725-25-26-allocation-summary_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54913
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/080725-24-25-allocation-summaryxlsx-2024-25.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54893
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-july-2025.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-analysis-july-2025-2026-sheet1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54911
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54911
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/260006-mou-ccsd-and-ccso-guardian-program-3yr-8725.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54900
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-fih-hvac-repair-replacement_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54901
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-for-chs-roof-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54907
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-khs-securty-lighting.pdf


19. C15 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 POE Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

20. C16 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Oakleaf Village Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 OVE Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

21. C17 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Tynes Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 TES Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

22. C18 - Change Order #2 for Keystone Heights High School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Change Order #2 KHS Security Lighting

23. C19 - Change Order #1 for Wilkinson Junior High School Control Access

Change Order #1 WJH Control Access

24. C20 - Change Order #2 for Orange Park High School Gym/Locker Room Renovations

Change Order #2 OPH Gym Locker Room Renovations

25. C21 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Shadowlawn Elementary School HVAC Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) SLE HVAC

26. C22 - Lakeside Junior High School HVAC and Roof Repair/Replacement Contract Award

LSJ HVAC & Roof Repair Replacement Contract

27. C23 - Change Order #1 for Green Cove Springs Junior High School CTE Lab Upgrades

Change Order #1 GCJ CTE Lab Upgrades

28. C24 - Change Order #2 (Days Only) for Oakleaf Junior High School Classroom Addition

Change Order #2 (Days Only) OLJ Classroom Addition

29. C25 - Change Order #6 for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen Renovation

Change Order #6 LSE Kitchen Renovation

30. C26 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 8.7.2025

31. C27 - Purchase Agreement for the Sale of Two (2) Relocatable Buildings at Oakleaf Junior High

250202_Pinewood_Christian_Academy_Relocatable_Sales_Contract .pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment on Non-Specific Agenda Items)

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Page 3 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54908
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-poe-fire-alarm-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54909
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-ove-fire-alarm-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54910
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-tes-fire-alarm-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54916
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-khs-security-lighting.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54918
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-wjh-control-access.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54919
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-oph-gym-locker-room-renovations.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54920
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-sle-hvac_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54928
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lsj-hvac-roof-repair-replacement-contract.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54929
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-gcj-cte-lab-upgrades.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54930
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-days-only-olj-classroom-addition.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54931
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-6-lse-kitchen-renovation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54925
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-872025.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54917
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/local-copy-250202-pinewood-christian-accademy-v2.pdf


Adjournment

Page 4 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Clay County District Schools' Achievements

Description
Bryan Campbell, District Director for Congressman Aaron Bean, will recognize achievements of Clay County District Schools.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent, david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Employee's Fifty Years of Service

Description
Recognition of Wilmont Snyder, who has dedicated over 50 years of service to Clay County District Schools, beginning his
employment on July 9, 1975.  Mr. Snyder currently works in the Maintenance Department.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on June 17, 2025 and Regular Meeting on June 26, 2025

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2025 Jun 17 Workshop.pdf

2025 Jun 26 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 9 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-jun-17-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-jun-26-regular-mtg.pdf


Date: Jun 17 2025 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street & Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

June 17, 2025 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Robert Alvero, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley
Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items

1. Property/Casualty Insurance Presentation

Clay County Schools Renewal Presentation FINAL.pdf

Minutes:

Jori Van der Voort, Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., shared the attached visual presentation, highlighting the state of the market, exposures,
and renewal options. Ms. Van der Voort shared that 42 markets were approached and 15 quotes were received. Renewal rates have
improved and are competitive in the market, and the premium increase is attributed to exposure increases.

Mrs. Clark inquired into the accuracy of the student enrollment numbers used, and Superintendent Broskie advised these are very
real numbers reflective of all schools.  Mrs. Skipper requested and received confirmation that the main reason for the increased cost
is due to increased property values.

2. Board Member Business

Minutes:

Mrs. Skipper invited board members to bring forward any new initiatives, agenda items, or items for discussion.

Mrs. Hanson proposed the board hold a teacher forum over the summer to listen to teachers' concerns. This will be scheduled for
7/24/25, at 6:00 p.m. at the Teacher Learning Center.  A flyer will be created and sent to teachers' mailboxes to announce this forum.
Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorneyu, advised there is no requirement for an agenda.  Mrs. Hanson has a list of potential topics
for discussion.

Mrs. Hanson would like to address the Code of Student Conduct at a future workshop to begin reviewing it in its entirety, section by
section. This process will begin in September. She also shared that Tom Wittmer, Neola, spoke positively of working with the board
and staff of Clay county at the Annual FSBA/FADSS Summer Conference.

Mrs. Clark would like to have a brief educational presentation on the self-funded insurance program to include process, changes, and
the utilization of funds.

3. Engaging and Supporting Families Presentation

CCDS FACE Board Workshop Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Karen McMillan and Tori Granese, Coordinators of Family and Community Engagement, shared the attached visual presentation
summarizing the family engagement initiatives being utilized by Clay County District Schools to foster strong partnerships between
schools, families, and the community. Registered volunteers currently total over 10,000, demonstrating the immense community
support and dedication to CCDS schools.

Page 10 of 268

DRAFT



Numerous current initiatives to engage families and the community in the educational process in support of the Strategic Plan goals
were noted. Student enrollment and withdrawal data were shared in relation to the voucher and school choice options, and initiatives
to promote CCDS schools were highlighted, including academic and informational events as well as community and social events.
Opportunities for parent engagement and support, as well as resource and support programs offered, were highlighted.

Mrs. Hanson noted the value of tying agenda items to the corresponding Strategic Plan and would like to have that correlation
delineated.  Mr. Broskie advised that every agenda item includes a Strategic Plan component relating each item to its goal and that
the Strategic Plan is updated annually. Kelly Watt, Chief of Staff, indicated the Year 2 Update is close to being finished, pending the
state's release of student assessment data. Mrs. Hanson wants to ensure that the board is involved in the development of the
Strategic Plan and indicated there is a need to make the public aware that goals are updated each year as work towards the goals
and academic excellence continues.

Mrs. Skipper proposed that this information could be shared in the Board Flyer and thanked the Family & Community Engagement
department for their work that has returned parents and volunteers to the schools. 

Mrs. Gilhousen found the slide reflecting stable enrollment to be insightful and would be interested in viewing statewide data.

4. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on June 26, 2025

June-26-2025-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions:

Recognize 2024-2025 Retirees - no discussion;

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;
D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Workshop on May 27, 2025; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on June 5, 2025 - no
discussion;
C2 Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2025-2026 to Florida Association of District School Superintendents - no
discussion;
C3 ENA/Zayo Contract Amendment - no discussion;
C4 Personnel Consent Agenda - no discussion;
C5 Complete Salary Schedule 2025-2026 - no discussion;
C6 School Board Approval of the 2025-2026 Comprehensive Evidence-Based Reading Plan (CERP) - no discussion; 
C7 2025-2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between School Board of Clay County and St. Johns River State
College (SJRSC) - no discussion;
C8 Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Rolling Hills Community Development District
Regarding Usage of District Recreational Facilities - no discussion;
C9 Agreement Between Clay County District Schools and Clay County Fire Rescue (CCFR) - no discussion;
C10 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;
C11 Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids DBA AMIKids Clay County - brief discussion to clarify
students counted for enrollment;
C12 2025-2027 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between School Board of Clay County and Florida State College of
Jacksonville - no discussion;
C13 Preferred Physical Therapy Contract - no discussion;
C14 Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals - no discussion;
C15 PowerSchool Contract Renewals - no discussion;
C16 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026 - no discussion;
C17 Monthly Financial Reports May 2025 - no discussion;
C18 Budget Amendment Report for May 31, 2025 - no discussion;
C19 Approve the 2025-2026 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J. Gallagher &
Co. (broker) - no discussion;
C20 Deletion of Certain Items Report June, 2025 - no discussion;
C21 Contract Renewal - Benefitfocus Agreement for Web Based Enrollment and Eligibility Management System RFP # 18-BA-
123 - no discussion;
C22 BID Award - no discussion;
C23 BID Renewal - no discussion;
C24 Transportation Bus Purchase Agreement - no discussion;
C25 Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County, Florida: the Town of Orange Park and the Town of
Orange Park Police Department - no discussion;
C26 Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County, Florida: City of Green Cove Springs Florida; and Green
Cove Springs Police Department - no discussion;
C27 Amendment to Clay County Agreement/Contract No. 2024-2025 - Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay
County (SBCC), Florida; and the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for Funding of School Resource Officers (July 1,Page 11 of 268

DRAFT



2024 - June 30, 2027) - no discussion;
C28 Resolution to Dispose of Relocatable Buildings at Oakleaf Junior High School - no discussion;
C29 Prequalification of Contractors - no discussion.

5. District Updates

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie noted that One Clay Leadership is taking place this week to provide all secondary school teachers and
leaders training and team planning of school improvement goals and strategies to be implemented.

Matt Boyack, Director of Safety and Security, anticipated the approval of funds, upon the budget being passed, to accommodate
CCDS' participation in a pilot program (Yondr) to provide a means to restrict cell phone use at all school levels. An agenda item will be
entered for the board's consideration and approval.  Mrs. Gilhousen recommended this commitment be contingent upon being fully
funded for all high schools. Mr. Broskie noted the district's responsibility for certain deliverables to the state so they can assess the
program's success and cautioned the board that not all parents may support this measure. Mrs. Hanson noted that a forum held two
years ago yielded the confirmation that parents acknowledged and are aware that children have problems and are negatively affected
by cell phone use, and she is proud that Clay County is leading the way to do the best thing for academic achievement. Mrs. Skipper
advised legislators have been presented with medical data showing how harmful cell phone use is for children and that this measure
will help both teachers and students as well as uphold the law. Mrs. Clark noted previous input from principals opposing cell phones
during school hours.

Mr. Broskie noted actions taken re the budget with the two primary goals of prioritizing students in the classroom and prioritizing
employees. Every affected employee was offered another opportunity within the district. Once the budget is signed, work can continue
on developing the district's budget and making any additional revisions needed. Board members will meet 1:1 with Dawn Posey,
Interim Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, to review the upcoming tentative budget presentation and format.

6. Executive Session (closed to the public)

Minutes:

Following all meeting business, a recess was taken at 10:35 a.m., and an executive session (closed to the public) was convened at
10:42 a.m.  The meeting was adjourned following the executive session.

Questions from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments

7. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, advised that there will be an upcoming presentation at a future workshop outlining
legislative changes.

School Board Comments

8. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Clark appreciated the heartfelt graduation of four students from AMI.

Mr. Alvero was impressed with the Family and Community Engagement initiatives and looks forward to continued efforts to bring back
students to CCDS.

Mrs. Hanson encouraged board members to attend future FSBA conferences, appreciating the training and statistical information she
received.

Adjournment  (12:02 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 12 of 268

DRAFT



Date: Jun 26 2025 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island FL 32003

June 26, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (None)

Invocation  (Erin Skipper)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Robert Alvero, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Superintendent
David Broskie; Not Present: Ashley Gilhousen, District 5)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize 2024-2025 Retirees

Minutes:

Brenda Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, introduced an audio/visual presentation honoring Clay County
District Schools' 2024-2025 retirees.  There are 120 retirees, possessing 2,364 combined years of experience.

Presenters  (None)

School Showcase  (None)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment on Specific Agenda Items)

2. Public Comment on Specific Agenda Items

Minutes:

There were no public speakers on specific agenda items.

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

3. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action A.

4. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action B.

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

Page 13 of 268

DRAFT



5. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on May 27, 2025; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on June 5, 2025

2025 May 27 Workshop.pdf

2025 Jun 5 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2025 Jun 5 Regular Mtg.pdf

6. C2 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2025-2026 to Florida Association of District School Superintendents

School Board Member

7. C3 - C2a - Notice of Public Hearing and Approval to Advertise Revisions to SB Policy 5136 Wireless Communications Devices

Legal Adv Notice of PH to Revise 5136 Wireless Communications Devices.pdf

5136 - WIRELESS COMMUNICATION DEVICES_Proposed Revisions.pdf

Information Technology Services

8. C4 - ENA\Zayo Contract Amendment

250164_ENA(ZAYO)_Contract_210096_&_230097_Amnd_2_DKC_6-3-25.pdf

Executed 250164 ENA_Zayo Education.pdf

Human Resources

9. C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 6-26-2025.pdf

10. C6 - Complete Salary Schedule 2025-2026

Proposed 2025-2026 Salary Schedule (1).pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

11. C7 - School Board Approval of the 2025-2026 Comprehensive Evidence-Based Reading Plan (CERP)

Clay Comprehensive Evidence-Based Reading Plan 2025-2026 (1).pdf

Executed Clay Comprehensive Evidence-Based Reading Plan 2025-2026.pdf

12. C8 - 2025-2026 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between School Board of Clay County and St. Johns River State College
(SJRSC)

SJRSC Dual Contract 250195 2025-2026.pdf

13. C9 - Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Rolling Hills Community Development District
Regarding Usage of District Recreational Facilities.

Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Rolling Hills Community Development District
Regarding Usage of District Recreational Facilities..pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

14. C10 - Agreement Between Clay County District Schools and Clay County Fire Rescue (CCFR)

250198 CCFR Adjunt Teacher 2526.pdf

Executed 250198.pdf

Instruction-K-12 Academic

15. C11 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

June 26 2025 Student Travel.pdf

16. C12 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids DBA AMIKids Clay County

AMI Kids 250201 2025-2026.pdf

Executed 250201 AMI Kids.pdf

17. C13 - 2025-2027 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between School Board of Clay County and Florida State College of
Jacksonville

Page 14 of 268

DRAFT



FSCJ Dual Enrollment 2025-2027 250197.pdf

18. C14 - Preferred Physical Therapy Contract

Preferred Physical Therapy 250200.pdf

Executed 250200 Preferred Physical Therapy.pdf

Instruction-Reading/Library Media

19. C15 - Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals

June 2025_Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals List.pdf

Business Affairs

20. C16 - PowerSchool Contract Renewals

PowerSchool BusinessPlus.pdf

PowerSchool Records Elevate Hire.pdf

Powerschool Predictive Enrollment Analytics.pdf

Executed Power School Renewals.pdf

21. C17 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026

06.26.25 - 25-26 Allocation Summary.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

22. C18 - Monthly Financial Reports May 2025

Property Report May 2025.pdf

May Financials 6-5-25 (1).pdf

23. C19 - BUDGET AMENDMENT REPORT FOR May 31, 2025

May 2025 Monthly Budget Statement.pdf

Business Affairs-Insurance

24. C20 - Approve the 2025-2026 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J. Gallagher &
Co. (broker)

Clay County Schools Premium Summary.pdf

Clay County Schools Renewal Presentation FINAL.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

25. C21 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT June, 2025

DELETION ANALYSIS JUNE 2024- 2025.pdf

Deletion Report June 2025.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

26. C22 - Contract Renewal – Benefitfocus Agreement for Web Based Enrollment and Eligibility Management System RFP # 18-BA-
123

250177 Benefitfocus - Order Form for Renewals & New Retiree & incorporate HSA, FSA, DCA Order Form 6.9.2025.pdf

27. C23 - BID Award

28. C24 - BID Renewal

Operations

29. C25 - Transportation Bus Purchase Agreement

Bus Purchase Agreement.pdf

Page 15 of 268

DRAFT



30. C26 - Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County, Florida; the Town of Orange Park and the Town of Orange
Park Police Department

SRO Interlocal Agreement - OPPD 25_26 - 6.26.25.pdf

Interlocal Agreement with Orange Park Police Dept. Contract Review 6.26.25.pdf

31. C27 - Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County, Florida; City of Green Cove Springs Florida; and Green
Cove Springs Police Department

SRO Interlocal Agreement - GCSPD 25_26 6.26.25.pdf

Interlocal Agreement with Green Cove Springs Police Dept. Contact Review 6.26.25.pdf

32. C28 - Amendment to Clay County Agreement/Contract No. 2024/2025 - 200 Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of
Clay County (SBCC), Florida; and the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for Funding of School Resource Officers (July 1, 2024 -
June 30, 2027)

2023-2024-200 CCSB_Interlocal_Funding_ BCC#10 signed (1).pdf

BCC_CCSB Interlocal FUNDING Agreement Exhibit A & B.pdf

33. C29 - Approval to Participate in Florida Department of Education's Wireless Communication Pilot Program (SB 1470)

Operations-Facilities

34. C30 - Resolution to Dispose of Relocatable Buildings at Oakleaf Junior High School

Resolution for Dispose of RelocatableBuilding at Oakleaf Junior High School.pdf

35. C31 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.26.2025

36. C32 - 2024-2025 S.R.E.F. Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection Report

Department of Health Inspections.pdf

Fire Safety Inspections.pdf

Portable Inspections.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

37. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion
Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda
Minutes
Prior to the adoption of the consent agenda, Chair Skipper read the following statement into the record: "There has been a
necessary revision to a supporting document attached to Item C28 Amendment to Clay County Agreement/Contract No. 2024/2025
– Interlocal Agreement between the School Board of Clay County (SBCC), Florida; and the Board of County Commissioners (BCC)
for Funding of School Resource Officers (July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2027). In accordance with Florida Statute 120.525(2), a change
may be made for good cause. A revised version of Exhibit B, delineating the payment schedule for services, has been attached to
the agenda. This schedule reflects the breakout of capital funds to be issued in the months of July and August 2025 and adjusts the
remaining ten payouts accordingly. The overall amount of funds being paid for services remains the same."

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Beth Clark
Second: Robert Alvero
Ashley Gilhousen - Not Present
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye
Robert Alvero - Aye

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment on Non-Specific Agenda Items)

38. Public Comment on Non-Specific Agenda Items

Page 16 of 268

DRAFT



Minutes:

Public speakers:

Adam Goodwin
Dawn McCool 

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (None)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

39. Superintendent's Update

Superintendent's Update 06-26-2025.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the following:

Student Achievement in 2025-2026
Accessing Your Child's Scores
OneClay Leadership Academy
Summer Reminders
Apptegy's Rooms
Upcoming Events

School Board Attorney Remarks  (None)

School Board Member Remarks

40. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson noted the upcoming teacher forum being held by the board members on July 24, 2025 at 6:00 p.m., at the Teacher
Learning Center OPH Annex. 

Mrs. Clark advised that Mr. Broskie will work with the principal at Middleburg High School to address the art and music services at
Middleburg High, indicating that the effect on students was the last thing that was intended. She would like to determine if there is a
need for second AMIKids facility.

Mr. Alvero expressed his gratitude to the retirees for their many years of service and commitment to Clay County District Schools and
the children.

Adjournment  (6:44 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 17 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 8_7_25.pdf

Page 18 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-8_7_25.pdf


Page 19 of 268

DRAFT



Page 20 of 268

DRAFT



Page 21 of 268

DRAFT



Page 22 of 268

DRAFT



Page 23 of 268

DRAFT



Page 24 of 268

DRAFT



Page 25 of 268

DRAFT



Page 26 of 268

DRAFT



Page 27 of 268

DRAFT



Page 28 of 268

DRAFT



Page 29 of 268

DRAFT



Page 30 of 268

DRAFT



Page 31 of 268

DRAFT



Page 32 of 268

DRAFT



Page 33 of 268

DRAFT



Page 34 of 268

DRAFT



Page 35 of 268

DRAFT



Page 36 of 268

DRAFT



Page 37 of 268

DRAFT



Page 38 of 268

DRAFT



Page 39 of 268

DRAFT



Page 40 of 268

DRAFT



Page 41 of 268

DRAFT



Page 42 of 268

DRAFT



Page 43 of 268

DRAFT



Page 44 of 268

DRAFT



Page 45 of 268

DRAFT



Page 46 of 268

DRAFT



Page 47 of 268

DRAFT



Page 48 of 268

DRAFT



Page 49 of 268

DRAFT



Page 50 of 268

DRAFT



Page 51 of 268

DRAFT



Page 52 of 268

DRAFT



Page 53 of 268

DRAFT



Page 54 of 268

DRAFT



Page 55 of 268

DRAFT



Page 56 of 268

DRAFT



Page 57 of 268

DRAFT



Page 58 of 268

DRAFT



Page 59 of 268

DRAFT



Page 60 of 268

DRAFT



Page 61 of 268

DRAFT



Page 62 of 268

DRAFT



Page 63 of 268

DRAFT



Page 64 of 268

DRAFT



Page 65 of 268

DRAFT



Page 66 of 268

DRAFT



Page 67 of 268

DRAFT



Page 68 of 268

DRAFT



Page 69 of 268

DRAFT



Page 70 of 268

DRAFT



Page 71 of 268

DRAFT



Page 72 of 268

DRAFT



Page 73 of 268

DRAFT



Page 74 of 268

DRAFT



Page 75 of 268

DRAFT



Page 76 of 268

DRAFT



Page 77 of 268

DRAFT



Page 78 of 268

DRAFT



Page 79 of 268

DRAFT



Page 80 of 268

DRAFT



Page 81 of 268

DRAFT



Page 82 of 268

DRAFT



Page 83 of 268

DRAFT



Page 84 of 268

DRAFT



Page 85 of 268

DRAFT



Page 86 of 268

DRAFT



Page 87 of 268

DRAFT



Page 88 of 268

DRAFT



Page 89 of 268

DRAFT



Page 90 of 268

DRAFT



Page 91 of 268

DRAFT



Page 92 of 268

DRAFT



Page 93 of 268

DRAFT



Page 94 of 268

DRAFT



Page 95 of 268

DRAFT



Page 96 of 268

DRAFT



Page 97 of 268

DRAFT



Page 98 of 268

DRAFT



Page 99 of 268

DRAFT



Page 100 of 268

DRAFT



Page 101 of 268

DRAFT



Page 102 of 268

DRAFT



Page 103 of 268

DRAFT



Page 104 of 268

DRAFT



Page 105 of 268

DRAFT



Page 106 of 268

DRAFT



Page 107 of 268

DRAFT



Page 108 of 268

DRAFT



Page 109 of 268

DRAFT



Page 110 of 268

DRAFT



Page 111 of 268

DRAFT



Page 112 of 268

DRAFT



Page 113 of 268

DRAFT



Page 114 of 268

DRAFT



Page 115 of 268

DRAFT



Page 116 of 268

DRAFT



Page 117 of 268

DRAFT



Page 118 of 268

DRAFT



Page 119 of 268

DRAFT



Page 120 of 268

DRAFT



Page 121 of 268

DRAFT



Page 122 of 268

DRAFT



Page 123 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                                                                         Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose
Lake Asbury
Junior High

1/22 -
1/23/26

Key Largo,
FL

8th Grade
STEAM

Tour and study Florida Ecology at the Key Largo
Marine Lab

Fleming Island
High

10/24 -
10/25/25

Tallahassee,
FL

Cross
Country

Pre-state championship race

Fleming Island
High

7/26 -
7/29/25

Orlando, FL
Cheerleadi
ng

Cheerleading camp

Fleming Island
High

11/21 -
11/22/25

Tallahassee,
FL

Cross
Country

State Championship

Fleming Island
High

9/13 -
9/14/25

Tallahassee,
FL

Cross
Country

Regional cross country meet

Fleming Island
High

9/20 -
9/21/25

Cartersville,G
A

Cross
Country

Cross Country Invitational

Orange Park
High

3/27 -
3/30/26

New York,
NY

Chorus Attend a Broadway show and study musical theater

Orange Park
HIgh

9/12 -
9/14/25

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Multi day orienteering course

Oakleaf High
7/14 -
7/16/25

Deland, FL Football FCA Camp at Stetson Univ.

Ridgeview HIgh
9/12 -
9/14/25

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Multi day orienteering course

Ridgeview High 2/6 - 2/7/26 Douglas, GA NJROTC Area 10 Close Order Drill Championship
         

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Page 124 of 268

DRAFT



Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

August 2025 Student Travel.pdf

Page 125 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/august-2025-student-travel.pdf


Page 126 of 268

DRAFT



Page 127 of 268

DRAFT



Page 128 of 268

DRAFT



Page 129 of 268

DRAFT



Page 130 of 268

DRAFT



Page 131 of 268

DRAFT



Page 132 of 268

DRAFT



Page 133 of 268

DRAFT



Page 134 of 268

DRAFT



Page 135 of 268

DRAFT



Page 136 of 268

DRAFT



Page 137 of 268

DRAFT



Page 138 of 268

DRAFT



Page 139 of 268

DRAFT



Page 140 of 268

DRAFT



Page 141 of 268

DRAFT



Page 142 of 268

DRAFT



Page 143 of 268

DRAFT



Page 144 of 268

DRAFT



Page 145 of 268

DRAFT



Page 146 of 268

DRAFT



Page 147 of 268

DRAFT



Page 148 of 268

DRAFT



Page 149 of 268

DRAFT



Page 150 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Eagle Harbor Association Regarding Usage
of District Recreational Facilities.

Description
Fleming Island High School would like to enter  into an Interlocal Agreement with Eagle Harbor Association for the purpose of
which is to allow their swim team to use the competition swimming pool facilities at the Eagle Harbor Aquatic Facilities for
practices and swim meets.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow Fleming Island High School  swim team to use the Eagle Harbo Aquatic Facility competition
swimming pool  for practices and for swim meets.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Interlocal Agreement as submitted.

Contact
Travis Cunningham Athletic Director Fleming Island High School ; Matthew Fetzner Swim Coach

Financial Impact
$1,800.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 151 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - 2025-2026 Professional Learning Advisory Council Membership

Description
The purpose of the Professional Learning Advisory Council (PLAC) is to assist the Professional Learning office in planning,
coordinating and making recommendations to the Clay County School Board to implement professional learning activities. 
PLAC meets a minimum of twice per year to collaborate on meaningful professional learning experiences throughout the district.
The conversations that are held during these meetings help shape the trajectory of professional learning, leading to more effective
professional learning opportunities, increased job satisfaction and improved student learning outcomes.

Gap Analysis
This council provides an opportunity for collaborative discussions in the area of professional learning by convening teachers,
support employees, school leaders, and district leaders. Without this collaborative discussion, decisions about professional
learning would be made in isolation, and would likely be less effective because the decisions would be made with a narrower
perspective.

Previous Outcomes
PLAC has been meeting since 1995 (formerly known as PDAC) upon the enactment of the The School Community Professional
Development Act of 1995.

Expected Outcomes
The implementation of meaningful professional learning experiences for all CCDS employees as a result of the collaboration
among the members of the council, resulting in increased learning outcomes for students. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Talent Recruitment Development and Retention.  
 
Strategy 3: Retain employees through opportunities for growth and career development leading to high satisfaction and increased
student outcomes.
 

Recommendation
That the School Board approve the 2025-2026 Professional Learning Advisory Council Membership.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

2025-2026 PDAC Committee Board Approval.pdf

Page 152 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-2026-pdac-committee-board-approval.pdf


 

 

Professional Learning Advisory Council  
2025-2026 Membership 

   
 
 

Committee Position Member  Ex Officio Members 

Elementary Teacher 1 Kristina Stevens  Vicki Kidwell 

Elementary Teacher 2 Tori Tompkins  Jennifer Shepard 

Elementary Teacher 3 Kim Dziwulski  Lonnie Roberts 

Elementary Teacher 4 Katherine Morrison   

Junior High Teacher 1 Justin Byrd  Non-Voting Members 

Junior High Teacher 2 Will Wood  Heather Weaver 

High School Teacher 1 Aaron Pratt  Roger Dailey 

High School Teacher 2 Michelle Forbis  Treasure Pickett 

High School Teacher 3 Sarah Saz-Gonzalez  Heather Teto 

Applied Technology Teacher Brad Zaner  Kellie Guilfoyle 

ESE Teacher Kamesa Carter  Melanie McIver 

Elementary Administrator Amanda Strickland  Jennifer Collins 

Junior High Administrator Wilnitra Dixon  Robin Bossinger 

High School Administrator Laurie Burke  Tabitha Johns 

Health and Social Services Personnel Erin Colon  Tiffany Bazemore 

District Level Administrator Sabrina Thomas  Liana Arnette 

Citizen representative Carloyn Krall  Karen Frazier 

   Melanie Sanders 

    

    

    

       

Page 153 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Career Acad, Embry-Riddle Aero Univ and School Board of Clay County 2025-2028

Description
A collaborative agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Career Acad, ERAU and School Board of Clay County for dual Enrollment
purposes. The 2025-28 agreement allows for the continuation of a relationship between the two organizations at the following
schools: Fleming Island High School, Keystone Heights Jr.-Sr. High School, Middleburg High School, Oakleaf High School and
Orange Park High School. This agreement allows Clay County students to enroll in college courses on the campuses of each high
school listed. The agreement outlines policies pertaining to Dual Enrollment and the roles and responsibilities of each
organization.

Gap Analysis
The agreement must be made in order to continue this offereing to Clay County students.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with ERAU and the agreement benefits the students of the district by
allowing them to earn both college credits and high school credits.  These courses will allow students to progress towards a post-
secondary certificate or degree.  In addition, this program is unique to the Clay County programs in that the aeronautical theme is
highlighted.

Expected Outcomes
Clay County Aerospace students continue to take advantage of the Dual Enrollment program and earn college level credits. It is
expected that the total number of students in this program will continue to grow. 
 
          

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.
Strategy 1.3:  Graduate students who are ready to enroll, enlist or be employed in the workforce. 

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County approve the 2025-28 Agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Carreer Acad, Embry-Riddle
Aeronautical University and the School Board of Clay County.

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed.  904-336-6918; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$57,143.00 per year (3 year agreement not to exceed 175,000.00)

Review Comments

Attachments

260005 Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University ERAU Agreement 2025-2028.pdf

Page 154 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/260005-embry-riddle-aeronautical-university-erau-agreement-2025-2028.pdf


260005

NTE $ for the 3 year Agreement $175,000.00

FLDOE 6A-1.012 (11)(b) Education Services / FLDOE 6A-1.012 (11)(a) Professional Services 
See orange & yellow highlighted comments.

JPS
7/16

Address the orange and yellow highlights.

Pending Signatures

8/7/2025

By Bertha Staefe at 4:39 pm, Jul 15, 2025

By Bertha Staefe at 4:41 pm, Jul 15, 2025

Page 155 of 268

DRAFT



1 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Career Academy,  
Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University and  
The School Board of Clay County, Florida 

Academic Year 2025-2028 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into and effective on the date of final execution 
(herein the “Effective Date”) and between The School Board of Clay County, Florida, a 
school DISTRICT within the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as the DISTRICT), 
and Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University, a not-for-profit corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as ERAU), to conduct 
work of mutual interest, which will be identified in a Statement of Work and Budget and 
Additional Terms and Conditions attached hereto and identified as Attachments A and B, 
respectively. 

ERAU and the DISTRICT shall be referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as 
“Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to contract with one another to provide for the addition or 
continuation of Embry-Riddle – Gaetz Aerospace Career Academy (hereinafter referred to 
as ACA). 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein made, it is agreed 
between the Parties hereto as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.0   SCOPE OF SERVICES 
1.1  The Parties agree to identify, define, develop, and implement activities, as 

described in the Statement of Work and Budget, Additional Terms and 
Conditions and Programmatic Information for School Based Administrators as 
described in Attachments A, B and C respectively as incorporated herein by 
reference. Appendix A outlines the schools participating in the program along 
with the courses being offered, and future appendices will be supplied with an 
invoice for that academic year.  

1.2  The Parties’ designated representatives shall have the right, by written 
instruction, to request changes in or additions to the Statement of Work and 
Budget through a written instrument authorized and executed with the same 
formality as this Agreement. 

1.3  The following schools have been identified as locations providing 
concurrent/dual enrollment, course work to support career pathways and 
aerospace STEM outreach. 

SCHOOL: FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL 
PRINCIPAL CONTACT: TOM PITTMAN 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR (NAME AND EMAIL) 
IN CHARGE OF SCHEDULING STUDENTS: 

CARLY NETHERLAND                                                 
CARLY.NETHERLAND@MYONECLAY.NET 

CTE CONTACT: ALICE PAULK 

Page 156 of 268

DRAFT



2 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

POINT OF CONTACT FOR 
CONTRACT: 

TREASURE PICKETT 
TREASURE.PICKETT@MYONECLAY.NET 

 
SCHOOL: KEYSTONE HEIGHTS HIGH SCHOOL 
PRINCIPAL CONTACT: LAURIE BURKE 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR (NAME AND EMAIL) 
IN CHARGE OF SCHEDULING STUDENTS: 

BETH ALPHOSE                                                              
BETH.ALPHONSE@MYONECLAY.NET 

CTE CONTACT: ALICE PAULK 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR 
CONTRACT: 

TREASURE PICKETT 
TREASURE.PICKETT@MYONECLAY.NET 

 
SCHOOL: MIDDLEBURG HIGH SCHOOL 
PRINCIPAL CONTACT: MARTIN AFTUCK 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR (NAME AND EMAIL) 
IN CHARGE OF SCHEDULING STUDENTS: 

REBECCA CRONANADER                                        
REBECCA.CRONANDER@MYONECLAY.NET 

CTE CONTACT: ALICE PAULK 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR 
CONTRACT: 

TREASURE PICKETT 
TREASURE.PICKETT@MYONECLAY.NET 

 
SCHOOL: OAKLEAF HIGH SCHOOL 
PRINCIPAL CONTACT: JUSTIN FLUENT 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR (NAME AND EMAIL) 
IN CHARGE OF SCHEDULING STUDENTS: 

LUCINDA SCHMEHL                                           
LUCINDA.SCHMEHL@MYONECLAY.NET 

CTE CONTACT: ALICE PAULK 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR 
CONTRACT: 

TREASURE PICKETT 
TREASURE.PICKETT@MYONECLAY.NET 

 
SCHOOL: ORANGE PARK HIGH SCHOOL 
PRINCIPAL CONTACT: IVIN GUNDER 
GUIDANCE COUNSELOR (NAME AND EMAIL) 
IN CHARGE OF SCHEDULING STUDENTS: 

MELLISSA MCCROSKY                                       
MELLISSA.MCCROSKY@MYONECLAY.NET 

CTE CONTACT: ALICE PAULK 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR 
CONTRACT: 

TREASURE PICKETT 
TREASURE.PICKETT@MYONECLAY.NET 

ARTICLE 2.0   TOTAL AMOUNT ALLOTTED 
The Parties will negotiate the total amount allotted to ERAU for work under this 
Agreement and affix the amount to this Agreement as a Budget, attached hereto as 
Attachment A and incorporated herein by this reference.  

ARTICLE 3.0   INVOICING 
ERAU shall submit invoices to the DISTRICT, and the DISTRICT shall pay ERAU for its 
performance of the services in accordance with the terms set forth in Attachments A and 
B.   

Page 157 of 268

DRAFT



3 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Invoices shall be submitted to:  Payment shall be remitted to: 
Name & Title: Laurie Woolwine, Admin. Asst.  Daytona Grants & Contracts Requests   

  Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University 
  1 Aerospace Blvd  
  Daytona Beach, FL 32114-3900 
  386-226-6212 
  dbgcars@erau.edu 

DISTRICT: Clay County 
Add 1: 23 S. Green Street 
Add 2: Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Phone: 904-336-6919 
Email: laurie.woolwine@myoneclay.net 

ARTICLE 4.0   PAYMENT 
4.1  The DISTRICT will make payment for the academic year in accordance with 

Attachment A and any addenda to this Agreement entered into by both Parties. 
4.2  Payments for verified invoices for the academic year (AY) will be due as 

follows: 
 

Date of Final Execution 100% of total amount due for AY 
Upon Receipt of Certification of 
CAPE Dollars AY25-26 Applicable 

5% CAPE Certification due for AY  

ARTICLE 5.0   TERM AND TERMINATION 
5.1  This Agreement shall commence on the date of final execution and shall remain 

in effect until June 30, 2028 unless terminated earlier as provided in this 
Agreement or extended by the Parties in writing. 

5.2  Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for its convenience, 
in whole, or in part, at any time with at least thirty (30) working days prior notice. 

5.3  A material breach shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
5.3.1 A Party becomes bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 

or a receiver is appointed to its business, or voluntary or involuntary petition in 
bankruptcy is filed, or proceedings for the reorganization of the other Party are 
instituted. 

5.3.2  Loss of funding. 

ARTICLE 6.0   CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
6.1  The Parties agree that during the course of this Agreement, the Parties may 

disclose to each other certain Confidential Information. Confidential 
Information would include cost and budget information, courseware, insights 
into future plans by either Party, or other information that would expand the 
financial accountability of either Party beyond that required by the law and its 
internal procedures, or that would reveal that information to the public media, 
competitors, and/or other school DISTRICTs negotiating similar programs with 
ERAU. Subject to and only to the extent permitted by Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, any Party receiving Confidential Information shall hold such 
information in strictest confidence, shall not transfer by any means the said 

Page 158 of 268

DRAFT



4 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

information to any third Parties without prior written consent of the disclosing 
Party, and shall not use or reproduce the said information for any purpose other 
than as reasonably required for the performance of the Agreement. 

6.2  Subject to and only to the extent permitted by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, each 
Party hereto shall at all times take all reasonable precautions which are 
necessary, useful, or desirable in order to prevent the disclosure or unauthorized 
use of Confidential Information of the other Party, and shall allow access to and 
disclosure of such information only to those of its employees as is specifically 
required for the purpose for which it is provided, and shall take responsible steps 
to ensure that all such employees are made aware of and comply with the 
receiving Party’s obligations hereunder. 

6.3  The foregoing obligations of confidentiality, use, and non-disclosure shall not 
apply to any information provided by the disclosing Party to the extent that the 
receiving Party can prove that: 
6.3.1  Such information has been developed independently by one Party and 

was lawfully in its possession prior to the receipt thereof, 
6.3.2  Such information lawfully is or became public knowledge through no 

breach of this Agreement by the receiving Party; 
6.3.3  Such information is lawfully provided to the receiving Party without 

restriction by a third Party; or 
6.3.4  Such information is required to be disclosed by law. 

6.4 The parties recognize that DISTRICT is a governmental entity, subject to Florida 
law regarding public access to records under Florida Statute, Chapter 119. As 
such, the Parties agree that only such information as is exempt and confidential 
under the provisions of law shall be considered confidential under the Terms of 
this Agreement. To the extent ERAU provides DISTRICT any information 
which it believes is confidential or exempt, ERAU shall notify DISTRICT of the 
specific information that it believes is confidential, as well as the basis for the 
exemption. To the extent that ERAU maintains information, which is subject to 
public record request, it shall provide the public access to such records in 
accordance with, and subject to the applicable statutory terms and fees. Pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, ERAU may receive from the DISTRICT records 
that may be exempt from public release, including but not limited to, personally 
identifiable student information, the confidentiality of which is protected under 
the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act as well as under Sections 
1002.22 and 1002.221, Florida Statutes.  ERAU acknowledges and agrees that 
it may use such information only for the purposes for which the disclosure was 
made and may not disclose the information to any other party without the prior 
written consent of the DISTRICT. ERAU shall not allow anyone to obtain access 
to personally identifiable information from education records, or other exempt 
records, except in strict accordance with the requirements, if any, established by 
the DISTRICT in writing.  Upon termination of the Agreement, ERAU shall, at 
the election of the DISTRICT, either destroy or return to the DISTRICT, all such 

Page 159 of 268

DRAFT



5 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

information in its possession, if any, and confirm the same in writing to the 
DISTRICT. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this 
Agreement, ERAU shall indemnify and hold the DISTRICT and its officers and 
employees harmless for any violation of this covenant, including but not limited 
to defending the DISTRICT and its officers and employees against any 
complaint, administrative or judicial proceeding, payment of any penalty 
imposed upon the DISTRICT, or payment of any and all cost(s), damage(s), 
judgment(s), or loss(es) incurred by or imposed upon the DISTRICT arising out 
of the breach of this covenant by ERAU.  This provision shall survive the 
termination of or completion of all performance or obligations under this 
Agreement and shall be fully binding upon ERAU until such time as any 
proceeding brought on account of this covenant is barred by any applicable 
statute of limitations. 

ARTICLE 7.0   LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
The Parties agree to be fully responsible for their own acts of negligence, or their respective 
agents’ acts of negligence when acting within the scope of their employment and agree to 
be liable for any damages proximately caused thereby; provided, however, the Parties agree 
that DISTRICT’s liability is subject to the monetary limitations and defenses imposed by 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.  These limitations will apply for all claims, including 
without limitation, contract, warranty, indemnity, tort (including derelict and negligence), 
and strict liability howsoever caused or incurred for any reason whatsoever. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall waive the sovereign immunity of the DISTRICT except to the extent 
waived in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

ARTICLE 8.0   NOTICES 
8.1 No notice or communication pertaining to this Agreement, except as provided in 

Paragraph 3 herein, shall be deemed to have been duly given by the Parties, 
unless addressed as follows or to such other address, individual or telecopy 
number as may be designated by notice given by a Party to the other Party from 
time to time: 

ERAU: Nanette Guzman 
Director – Office of Sponsored Research Administration 
1 Aerospace Boulevard,  
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114-3900 
guzmann2@ERAU.edu 
Phone: (386) 226-7695  
Fax: (386) 226-4901 
 

DISTRICT: 
Name & 

Title 

Clay County 
Treasure Pickett,  
Chief of Secondary Education 
 
23 S. Green Street, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 

 
Add. 1:    

 

Page 160 of 268

DRAFT



6 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Email: Treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net 
904-336-6919 Phone:    

 
 
8.2 Any such notice, request, requirement, approval, permission, consent or other 

communication in connection with this Agreement shall be given in writing and, 
if delivered by hand shall have been so delivered, or by registered mail shall be 
deemed to have been received by the addressee on the day on which it shall have 
been received, or if faxed, shall be deemed to have been received by the 
addressee upon electronic acknowledgement. 

 
ARTICLE 9.0   RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

The Parties hereto shall act as independent contractors and nothing herein contained shall 
be construed as creating any other relationship between the DISTRICT and ERAU, nor 
shall it be construed as creating any relationship with the other Party’s employees.  Each 
Party agrees that none of its employees is an employee or agent of the other Party.  No 
Party hereto shall, without the prior written consent of the other Party, enter into any 
contract or commitment in the name of or on behalf of the other Party or bind the other 
Party in any manner whatsoever. 

ARTICLE 10.0   COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
10.1 The Parties shall comply with any laws, rules, and regulations in force in the 

location where the Program is performed, as well as codes of conduct, if any, 
concerning security and safety of its employees or representatives. 

10.2  At all times relevant hereto, ERAU shall maintain all appropriate occupational 
and professional licenses as necessary to fulfill its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 11.0   STANDARDS OF CONDUCT   
The Parties recognize that the standards of deportment and conduct for faculty and students 
in the GAI must be appropriate to the requirements of a professional education program 
and the Federal, State, and local laws applicable to public education in the DISTRICT.  The 
Parties further agree that the more stringent of the standards of deportment and conduct 
established for GAI in general and in the ERAU Student Honor Code available at 
https://daytonabeach.erau.edu/campus-life/dean-of-students/honor will govern behaviors 
in the GAI.   
 
ARTICLE 12.0   DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

12.1 The Parties agree that any disputes between them arising from, related to, or in 
connection with this Agreement or the facts and circumstances leading thereto 
shall be exclusively subject to the laws, jurisdiction and venue of the United 

Page 161 of 268

DRAFT



7 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

States of America, State of Florida, without regard to otherwise applicable 
choice of law provisions. 

12.2  In case of dispute that cannot be resolved by mutual agreement, the Parties agree 
to good faith efforts to resolve any disputes between them by means of mediation 
using a mutually agreed mediator. Each side shall bear its own costs and 
expenses. Nothing about this provision shall bar either Party from seeking 
appropriate injunctive relief in Florida courts to prevent an imminent, irreparable 
harm. 

ARTICLE 13.0   INDEMNIFICATION 
As provided for under common law, and to the extent specifically authorized by Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, each of the Parties to this Agreement hereby agrees to 
indemnify and hold the other Party hereto harmless from and against all damages of 
any nature whatsoever which are caused or materially contributed to by the negligent 
acts of any officer, employee, and agent or other representative of the indemnifying 
Party and which are not caused or materially contributed to by any officer, employee, 
agent or other representative of the indemnified Party. In no event shall either Party be 
liable to the other under any theory of tort, contract, strict liability or other legal or 
equitable theory for lost profits, exemplary, punitive, special, incidental, indirect, 
consequential, collateral or similar damages, each of which is hereby excluded by 
agreement of the Parties regardless of whether or not such Party has been advised of 
the possibility of such damages. 
 
FAA ground courses may be offered but no actual flight activities or flight training in 
an aircraft are part of the ERAU Concurrent Enrollment program and any local third-
party business or individual offering flight training is doing so without any connection 
or relationship to ERAU. 

ARTICLE 14.0   FORCE MAJEURE  
No Party shall be liable for any failure to perform its obligations in connection with 
any action described in this Agreement, if such failure results from any act of God, riot, 
war, civil unrest, flood, earthquake, or other cause beyond such Party’s reasonable 
control (including any mechanical, electronic, or communications failure, but 
excluding failure caused by a Party’s financial condition or negligence). Except as 
expressly provided otherwise in Agreement, dates and times by which any Party is 
required to perform and obligations under this Agreement and the Statement of Work 
shall be postponed automatically to the extent and for the period of time that such Party 
is prevented from meeting such obligation by reason of any cause beyond its reasonable 
control, provided the Party prevented from performing its obligations notifies the other 
Party immediately of the commencement and nature of such cause and the probable 
consequences thereof with appropriate details, and provides further that such Party will 
use reasonable efforts to comply with its obligations in a timely manner utilizing to 
such end all resources reasonably required in the circumstances, including obtaining 
supplies or services from other sources if same are available. 

ARTICLE 15.0   CONFIDENTIALITY OF AGREEMENT/PUBLICITY 

Page 162 of 268

DRAFT



8 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Subject to and only to the extent permitted by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the Parties 
shall secure each other’s prior written approval before any information relating to this 
Agreement is released to anyone other than employees of any of the Parties requiring 
the information for the performance of their duties with respect to the matters 
contemplated in this Agreement, and which have agreed to be bound by confidentiality 
undertakings. 

ARTICLE 16.0   ASSIGNMENT 
The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement has been entered in consideration of the 
Parties mutual confidence in each other and the Parties are unwilling to proceed on the 
basis set out in this Agreement with any other person save and except as expressly 
provided herein.  Consequently, neither this Agreement nor any of the respective rights 
or obligations of the Parties hereunder or benefit or advantage received, may be 
assigned, given, sold, bargained sublet, or otherwise disposed of, in whole or in part, 
by either Party without the prior written consent of the other Party, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or unduly delayed. 

ARTICLE 17.0   COMPLETE AGREEMENT 
17.1 This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements between the Parties related 

to the subject matter hereof and represents the entire understanding between the 
DISTRICT and ERAU in relation to the subject matter dealt with herein. 

17.2 This Agreement shall not be amended or modified, and no waiver of any 
provision shall be effective, unless set forth in a written instrument authorized 
and executed with the same formality as this Agreement. Any additional funding 
over the current not to exceed total will be awarded as an amendment to the 
agreement.  

 
ARTICLE 18.0   INSURANCE  
 

District certifies that it is self-insured pursuant to the provisions of §768.28, Florida 
Statutes, for tort liability in anticipation of any claim which it might be liable to pay 
pursuant to that section. Worker’s compensation coverage is also self-insured at levels 
conforming to statutory requirements. Such liability and workers’ compensation self-
insurance supersedes any insurance obligation imposed on the District in the 
Agreement. District shall insure that ERAU receives immediate notification of 
reduction in or cancellation of coverage.   
 
ERAU agrees to maintain insurance coverage.  

 
ARTICLE 19.0   FLORIDA STATUTE 1011.62 (1)(O) 

 
An amendment to s. 1011.62(1)(o), F.S., added provisions to allow for funding of 
CAPE Industry Certifications and CAPE Acceleration Industry Certifications earned 
through dual enrollment. CAPE industry certifications earned through dual enrollment 
must be reported and funded pursuant to s. 1011.80, F.S. However, if a student earns a 

Page 163 of 268

DRAFT



9 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

certification through a dual enrollment course and the certification is not a fundable 
certification on the postsecondary certification funding list, or the dual enrollment 
certification is earned as a result of an agreement between a school district and a 
nonpublic postsecondary institution, such as this, the bonus value shall be funded in 
the same manner as other nondual enrollment course industry certifications. In such 
cases, the school district may provide for an agreement between the high school and 
the technical center, or the school district and the postsecondary institution may enter 
into an agreement for equitable distribution of the bonus funds.  

 
Several ERAU courses have Industry Certification preparation embedded in their 
course work. 
 
For the purposes of this Agreement, if dual enrollment certification is earned on ERAU 
courses with CAPE certifications, the equitable distribution of funds is set at 5% to 
ERAU for this annual agreement. Each year’s percentage will be dictated based on the 
availability of state grant dollars. Districts are encouraged to utilize Industry 
Certifications as a means for future sustainability.  
Districts are required to register courses associated with CAPE certifications with 
the department of education for CAPE funding.  
All costs associated with CAPE Certifications (course materials, testing fees and 
equipment) are covered within this agreement by ERAU and subject to available funds.  

 
 
 

Signature page to follow 
 
 
  

Page 164 of 268

DRAFT



10 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
duly authorized officers or representatives. 

For Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University 

________________________________________________     __________ 
Nanette Guzman, DBA, CRA                                                     DATE 
Director, Office of Sponsored Research Administration          

For The School Board of Clay County, Florida 

_______________________________________________      ___________ 
Erin Skipper, School Board Chair (Sign)                                DATE 

_______________________________________________     ___________             
David Broskie, Superintendent (Sign)                                              DATE 

Statement of Work and Budget to follow 

Page 165 of 268

DRAFT



11 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Attachment A 
Statement of Work and Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
            

Grant 
funds will 
cover the 

cost of all technical training, travel for professional development, equipment, supplies, textbooks, 
teacher stipends, program management, student industry certification exams and programs in 
UAS and Private Pilot Ground school, teacher industry certification exams and training 
programs in UAS and Private Pilot Ground School, professional industry conferences when 
possible and other aviation opportunities as they may arise. 
 
Payment 
 
The DISTRICT will make payment(s) for each academic year in accordance with this 
schedule.  Future payments will be based on the schedule for that subsequent academic 
year, and an invoice supplied to the district.  
Payments for the initial academic year will be due as follows: 

 
Date of Final Execution 

  
$57,143.00 

    
   (100% of total due) 

Upon Receipt of Certification 
of CAPE Dollars Applicable 

     5% CAPE Certification            
due for AY 

               
Total Due 

  
$57,143.00 

 

 
AY 2025-2026 Course Selections 
  

Fall 2025 Semester/Spring 2026 Semester 
 

  1) 
2) 

Secondary Course Sections (@ $250) 
Dual Enrollment Course Sections (@ $500) 
 

  2 Sections 
18 Sections 
 

 
TOTAL SECTIONS 

 
20 Sections 
 
 

Course Monitor Fees ($100 per DE section)  $    1,800.00 
Faculty Costs  $  31,500.00 
Fringe Benefits  $    2,552.00 
Dual Enrollment Section Cost @ $500  $    9,000.00 
Secondary Course Section Cost @ $250  $       500.00 
   
SUBTOTAL  $  45,352.00 
INDIRECT COSTS  $  11,791.00 
   
TOTAL PRICE AY25-26  $  57,143.00 
   
NOT TO EXCEED TOTAL AY25 - AY28  $175,000.00 
   
   

Page 166 of 268

DRAFT



12 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Attachment B 
 

Additional Terms and Conditions 
 
 

Purpose 
 
Concurrent/dual enrollment courses are postsecondary courses that eligible students can 
take to earn both secondary and college or career certificate credit, facilitating accelerated 
progress toward a post-secondary certificate or degree. The Gaetz Aerospace Career 
Academy (ACA) of Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University (ERAU), Contract 
Committee meets annually in the spring to go over the current year's agreements and 
discusses changes that are required due to changes in statute or rule and any changes 
desired by either the school district or the college. A draft document is prepared by 
University personnel and sent to all members of the Committee for additional changes 
or approval. Once the document is in its final draft, copies are sent to the school districts 
to take to their School Boards for approval and signatures. Once approved and signed, 
copies are sent to Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University (ERAU) to be approved and 
signed by  ACA–ERAU. Digitally signed, electronic copies are sent to the school district 
personnel unless hard copies are requested. 
 
The Agreement is expected to be completed prior to the start of the school year. 

 
A. A ratification or modification of all existing agreements 

 
Once the Agreement is signed by both Parties, the Agreement will be active for 
the upcoming academic year. This Agreement covers concurrent/dual 
enrollment, but also course work to support career pathways, outreach and 
teacher preparation. Legislative changes that occur after the final draft of this 
document which impact the upcoming academic year will take precedence. 

 
B. A description of the process by which students and their parents are 

informed about opportunities for student participation in the 
concurrent/dual enrollment program 
It is the responsibility of the high schools in the district to inform students of the 
availability of the dual enrollment program requirements and currently offered 
courses through educational planning and guidance process. Each high school will 
advertise dual enrollment through a variety of methods. High school personnel 
will direct students to meet with their high school guidance counselors if they are 
interested in learning more about participation in dual enrollment. High school 
guidance counselors will review with the student criteria for participation in the 
dual enrollment program. Information will also be available to students and 
parents on ERAU’s Gaetz Aerospace Career Academy website. It is the 
responsibility of the high schools to notify parents about the option for their child 
to participate in dual enrollment courses through a variety of means. 

 

Page 167 of 268

DRAFT



13 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

1. References to students in this document mean any student enrolled in an 
ACA - ERAU course. 
 

2. Registration in this document refers to the period of time between applying 
and enrolling in their dual enrollment courses each semester. 
 

3. References to applying or applications means the process by which the 
student completes the online application, enters the information required, 
and submits the parent consent form. This process is completed upon entry 
to the program and is only required to be completed once. 
 

4.  ACA will provide information to the secondary schools regarding 
requirements for participation in, and the educational benefits to be derived 
from concurrent/dual enrollment. 
 

5. The secondary schools, in turn, will utilize printed, published, electronic, or 
other media to notify students and their parents or guardians of the 
opportunity to participate in these programs.  The secondary schools will 
additionally provide information, using these same methods, to students and 
their parents or guardians, of the eligibility criteria for participation in these 
programs. 
 

6. ACA will post application deadlines and registration dates on its 
concurrent/dual enrollment website .  https://erau.edu/gaetz-aerospace-
institute/apply-now/important-dates 
 

7. ACA Regional Directors , Faculty and staff will work with district and 
school officials on targeted concurrent/dual enrollment recruiting activities. 

 
C. A delineation of courses and programs available to students eligible to 

participate in concurrent/dual enrollment, outreach and career pathway 
courses. 

 
1. Courses to be provided by ACA under this Agreement will be mutually 

agreed upon by ACA and the School District and will avoid unnecessary 
duplication of existing courses.  
 

2. Section 1007.271(1), Florida Statutes, establishes that “the dual enrollment 
program is the enrollment of an eligible secondary student … in a 
postsecondary course creditable toward high school completion and a career 
certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree”. A student who is 
enrolled in postsecondary instruction that is not creditable toward a high 
school diploma may not be classified as a dual enrollment student. Physical 
education skills courses and college preparatory instruction are not eligible 
for dual enrollment.  
 

Page 168 of 268

DRAFT



14 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

3. ACA will furnish each school with a copy of the current courses with 
descriptions for each course in which a student may be enrolled.  Specific 
courses to be provided on school campuses in the participating districts shall 
be mutually agreed upon by the School Board and ACA. 

 
 Dual enrollment:https://erau.edu/gaetz-aerospace-

institute/programs/concurrent-dual-enrollment 
 High school credit courses: https://erau.edu/gaetz-aerospace-

institute/programs/smarter-high-school 
 

4. Courses eligible for dual enrollment must be a minimum of three college 
credits; courses with two or more college credits with a 1.0 or more credit 
lab are acceptable. If there are co-requisite courses required by ERAU, the 
courses must be taken simultaneously. 
 

5. ACA courses, both dual enrollment and SMART@ER courses, have a cap 
of no more than 30 students per section (class period). Dual enrollment 
courses may not be combined with other courses. All students in the dual 
enrollment classroom must be enrolled with ERAU. 

 
D. A description of the process by which students and their parents exercise 

options to participate in the concurrent/dual enrollment program 
 

Students and the parent/guardian of students wishing to pursue participation in 
the ACA program must contact their secondary school guidance counselors to 
discuss admissions criteria and to obtain the necessary application information. 
 
APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
Step 1 – Complete Online Application – New Students Only – First 10 Days of 
Semester All new students (students who have not taken an ERAU class previously) 
must complete the online application. Special care should be taken to enter 
information correctly as this will create the official ERAU student account. 
Applications are typically processed within a few business days. The online 
application link can be found on the GAI website at  https://erau.edu/gaetz-
aerospace-institute. 
 
Once the application is processed at ERAU, the student will receive an email with 
their Embry-Riddle Student ID number and email address. The student must log on 
to ERNIE to claim their account and set up their password. To access ERNIE, go to 
www.erau.edu and click on ERNIE at the top of the page. 
 
Step 2 – Once a completed application is submitted by the student, an electronic 
request will automatically be sent to the student’s parent/guardian requesting their 
consent and the school counselor requesting their recommendation. Students are not 
prevented from enrolling while waiting for approvals but both parent consent and 

Page 169 of 268

DRAFT



15 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

school counselor recommendation are required to be on file before the registration 
period ends. Students missing parent/guardian consent or school counselor approval 
when registration ends will be dropped from enrolled courses.   
 
Step 3 – Enrolling in Courses – ALL STUDENTS 
Instructors will supply their students with the correct Course Code and Section 
Number for the class during the Registration period and instructions for enrolling. 
Students will self enroll in their courses online each semester by accessing their 
ERNIE accounts.  

 
The school is responsible for providing any documents needed for 
eligibility. This may include secondary school transcripts or placement test 
scores.   
 
All documentation must be received by ERAU by the posted deadlines. If a 
student does not meet eligibility criteria or does not submit paperwork by 
the posted deadline, they may not be eligible to enroll.  
 

1. Registration - Registration information will be provided to school 
counselors and instructors to better help students and parents understand the 
requirements, admission, enrollment, procedures, and benefits of program 
participation. The registration process is also housed on the ACA website: 
https://erau.edu/gaetz-aerospace-institute/students-instructors. 
 
Instructors will supply their students with the correct course and section 
number during open registration and students will self-register online. 
Students should verify their enrollments by logging in to their ERNIE 
accounts and reviewing their student center records. Students are held to the 
ACA academic calendar and deadlines. Any schedule changes must be made 
by the published deadlines. It is the student’s responsibility to notify 
ERAU’s ACA office if they change schools or withdraw from secondary 
school. 
 

2. Withdrawal process – dual enrollment students must notify their instructor 
and school counselor to withdraw from a course(s) within the withdrawal 
period. The student must see their counselor to request a withdrawal. The 
counselor will notify the ACA office of the effective date of the student’s 
schedule change. Requests must be received by the withdrawal deadline.  
The student will receive a W on their transcript for the attempt in the course. 
Students who withdraw two times are no longer eligible to participate in the 
ERAU-ACA program.   
 
Regardless of meeting student eligibility requirements for continued 
enrollment, a student may lose the opportunity to participate in a course if 
the student is disruptive to the learning process, such that the progress of 
other students or the efficient administration of the course is hindered.  

Page 170 of 268

DRAFT



16 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

 
In addition, a student will be sanctioned accordingly if found to violate any 
of the ERAU student code of conduct standards as outlined in the ERAU 
Student Handbook. This could include a sanction ranging from a warning to 
permanent dismissal from ERAU. https://erau.edu/gaetz-aerospace-
institute/apply-now/academic-integrity-student-handbook  
 
Each course taken through concurrent/dual enrollment will count toward the 
student’s total attempted hours once they graduate secondary school. If the 
student takes unnecessary coursework, it could impact Federal Financial Aid 
and university excess hour fees in the future. It is the responsibility of school 
counselors to share this information with parents. 
 

3. Grade Distribution - All students enrolled in concurrent/dual enrollment 
classes will be graded on the same basis as other college students in the same 
courses. ACA will assign letter grades to each student/course, and the letter 
grade assigned shall be posted to the student's secondary school transcript 
by the school district. Final grades between the university course and high 
school course must match.  

 
 

E. A list of any additional initial student eligibility requirements for 
participation in the concurrent/dual enrollment program 

 
1. An overall GPA of 2.5 on an unweighted 4.0 scale is required for students 

to enroll in dual enrollment. Students must be in grades 10-12 to enroll in 
ACA dual enrollment courses. Continued eligibility for college credit dual 
enrollment (concurrent/dual enrollment) requires the maintenance of a 2.0 
unweighted secondary school GPA and the minimum GPA required by the 
college. S. 1007.271(3), F.S., allows exceptions to the required GPA on an individual 
student basis if both parties agree. Broad exceptions are not allowed. Any exception 
to these requirements must be approved in advance by ERAU and the 
secondary school Administration.  

 
2. The secondary schools shall identify those students qualified and interested 

in participation of concurrent/dual enrollment classes. The secondary 
school administrators will approve student eligibility for participation in 
these classes. The student must be enrolled in their County Public School 
System or Private School Organization and must be working towards a 
secondary school diploma to participate in concurrent/dual enrollment. 

 
3. Parent/Guardian signature is required on the electronic consent form. 
 
4. Concurrent/dual enrollment courses are weighted at least at the honors 

level on the secondary school transcripts. Any course taken becomes a 
permanent part of the student’s academic record. Students will earn 
secondary school and college credit for the course dual enrollment 

Page 171 of 268

DRAFT



17 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

(concurrent enrollment). If a student does not successfully complete their 
course(s) it could affect future financial aid eligibility. 

 
5. The district and participating school are held to the ACA academic 

calendar and deadlines. Any schedule changes must be made by the 
published deadlines. Efforts are made to align the ACA academic calendar 
as closely as possible with the high school's but discrepancies may occur 
with course dates, testing and grading deadlines. It is the student and 
school's responsibility to notify the ACA office if they change schools or 
withdraw from a secondary school. 

 
6. Students who earn an “F” grade in a course are no longer eligible to enroll 

in ACA courses.  
 
7. Students who earn a “D” grade may retake that one class. Courses may 

only be repeated once.  
 
8. Dual enrollment courses meet the curricular expectations and are at the 

same depth and rigor of non-dual enrollment postsecondary instruction, 
including dual enrollment courses offered on the high school campus. 
Students should understand that dual enrollment courses are college 
courses and the amount of work necessary to succeed may be much greater 
than in high school courses. In addition, dual enrollment courses become a 
part of a student’s permanent college transcript and are calculated into the 
student’s permanent postsecondary GPA. It is the responsibility of the high 
schools in the district to inform the students and parents about the college-
level expectations. 

 
9. Students must be labeled as at least a sophomore in secondary school for 

consideration for concurrent/dual enrollment courses. Students are no 
longer eligible for concurrent/dual enrollment once they successfully 
complete 4 years of enrollment in secondary school or graduation, 
whichever comes first. Any exceptions to the requirements must be 
approved by both the secondary school and ACA. 

 
10. Students who will graduate from secondary school prior to completion of 

the post-secondary course may not register for the course through 
concurrent/dual enrollment. This means that secondary school seniors may 
NOT take a Summer A course as concurrent/dual enrollment or as a regular 
college student since they have not officially graduated from secondary 
school prior to the start of that term. 

 
F. A delineation of the secondary school credit earned for the passage of each 

concurrent/dual enrollment course 
 

The school district will ensure that appropriate secondary school credit will 

Page 172 of 268

DRAFT



18 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

be awarded upon successful completion of concurrent/dual enrollment 
classes. The district and school administration are responsible for registering 
their career themed courses with the Department of Education if the dual 
enrollment course is tied to an Industry Certification approved under CAPE.  

 
G. A recommended procedure for informing students and their parents of college-

level course expectations 
 

1. Information will be provided to school counselors and instructors to better 
help students and parents understand the requirements, admission, 
enrollment, procedures, and benefits of program participation. Program 
information is also available on the ACA website: https://erau.edu/gaetz-
aerospace-institute 

 
2. Instructors will remind students that concurrent/dual enrollment courses 

meet the curricular expectations and are at the same depth and rigor of non-
concurrent/dual enrollment postsecondary instruction. Instructors will 
provide students with a course syllabus outlining course requirements.  

 
3. Students are informed that they should plan to study at least two to three 

hours outside of class for every hour they are in the class to be successful in 
college level courses. In addition, guidance counselors should inform 
parents that concurrent/dual enrollment courses become a part of a student's 
permanent college transcript and are calculated into the student's permanent 
postsecondary GPA. 

 
H. The policies and procedures, if any, for determining exceptions to the required 

grade point averages on an individual student basis 
 
There will be no exception made to the required grade point averages for 
academic or career concurrent/dual enrollment without prior approval by both 
ACA and the HS administration. 
 
1. The registration policies for concurrent/dual enrollment courses as 

determined by the postsecondary institution. 
 

2. Concurrent/dual enrollment students will follow the college’s procedures for 
drop, withdrawal and petition policies. 
 

3. The beginning and ending dates of courses offered during the regular day in 
the secondary school facilities will follow the secondary school schedule 
and calendar. However, course registration, withdrawal and final grade 
submission dates will be held to the ERAU-ACA academic calendar.   

 
I. Exceptions, if any, to the professional rules, guidelines, and expectations stated 

in the faculty or adjunct faculty handbook for the postsecondary institution 

Page 173 of 268

DRAFT



19 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

 
ERAU employees serving as concurrent/dual enrollment faculty in the ACA 
approved to teach college courses under this Agreement will annually attend a new 
faculty or adjunct orientation conducted by ACA where they will receive a copy of 
the Gaetz Faculty Guidebook, which includes the Web address of the Student 
Handbook,  add/drop, withdrawal, and grading policies, as well as the ERAU Student 
Code of Conduct and critical dates. These instructors are expected to adhere to the 
professional guidelines, rules, and expectations presented in each handbook. 
 

J. Exceptions, if any, to the rules, guidelines, and expectations stated in the student 
handbook of the postsecondary institution which apply to faculty members 

 
1. The School Board shall annually assess the demand for concurrent/dual 

enrollment and provide that information to ACA for assistance in planning 
classes in the ERAU scheduling system. 
 

2. ACA shall be responsible for ensuring that the quality of instruction 
provided to concurrent/dual enrollment students is comparable to that 
afforded other ERAU students.  To this end, the following will apply to 
concurrent/dual enrollment courses taught on secondary school campuses: 
a. Concurrent/dual enrollment faculty shall be provided with a full-time 

ERAU faculty contact or liaison in the discipline they are teaching. 
 

b. Concurrent/dual enrollment faculty shall be provided a copy of course 
plans, objectives and relevant ERAU Institutional Master Course Outline 
(MCO’s).  These objectives and outcomes must be included in the course 
syllabus. 
 

c. The course syllabus must be provided to students and filed with the ACA 
discipline chairperson prior to the start of each term. Content of the 
syllabus must meet the same criteria as required for all college courses 
offered at ERAU. 
 

d. Textbooks and instructional materials used in concurrent/dual enrollment 
courses must be the same or comparable with those used in courses taught 
on the ERAU Daytona Beach campus.  If not identical, they must be 
approved by the discipline chairperson at the college. 
 

e. For academic disciplines where a departmental exam is used, the final 
exam will be provided to the concurrent/dual enrollment faculty by 
ERAU prior to the scheduled administration dates.  

 
3. The secondary school administration will recommend qualified secondary 

school teachers as instructors for concurrent/dual enrollment courses. To be 
qualified, faculty selected to teach concurrent/dual enrollment classes must 
submit an adjunct application to their administrative contact at ACA ERAU, 

Page 174 of 268

DRAFT



20 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

along with their postsecondary transcripts. The instructors must meet ERAU 
faculty credentialing requirements set by Southern Association of Colleges 
and Schools (SACS) Commission on Colleges’ Principles of Accreditation: 
Foundations for Quality Enhancement, 2012 Edition (section 3.7.1). 
 

4. In the absence of qualified secondary school instructors, ERAU may provide 
adjunct instructors to teach concurrent/dual enrollment courses on 
secondary school campuses. 
  

5. ACA secondary school instructors who teach concurrent/dual enrollment 
courses will be evaluated by the secondary school administration using the 
district-wide evaluation instrument. These instructors shall also be observed 
for evaluative purposes by an ACA Regional Director, or faculty liaison in 
accordance with ACA faculty evaluation processes. Secondary school 
faculty that instruct an ERAU course will follow the school board’s 
guidelines for the performance of employees when evaluating these 
concurrent/dual enrollment instructors. Copies of Instructor performance 
evaluations will be maintained by the district and ERAU. This will include 
following the procedures for sharing and discussing the performance 
assessment tool/process with those being evaluated at least 20 days prior to 
the classroom observation;  

 
a. scheduling the observation in advance;  

 
b. providing a copy of the performance assessment to the instructor within 

ten (10) working days after the observation;  
 

c. allowing the instructor to submit a written rebuttal to be placed with the 
assessment document in his/her personnel file housed in the Human 
Resource Office at ERAU;  

 
d. and allowing the instructor the right to inspect, review, and copy the 

contents of his/her personnel file. Results of ACA's observation will be 
shared with the district administrator. 

 
6. Concurrent/dual enrollment courses taught on a secondary school campus 

may not be combined with any non-college credit secondary school course. 
 

7. As is appropriate for college-level study, course materials and class 
discussions may reflect topics not typically included in secondary courses 
that some parents may object to for "minors." Courses are not to be modified 
to accommodate variations in student age and/or maturity. 

 
8. Any course-, discipline-, college-, or system-wide learning assessments 

required by the college in non-concurrent/dual enrollment sections of a 
course shall also be administered in all concurrent/dual enrollment sections 

Page 175 of 268

DRAFT



21 | P a g e  
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

of the course. 
 

9. ACA shall analyze student performance in concurrent/dual enrollment 
course offerings on secondary school and college campuses to ensure that 
the level of preparation for future success is comparable with non-
concurrent/dual enrollment college students. Analyses and 
recommendations shall be shared and reviewed with principals and school 
district administrators. 

 
10. IMPORTANT:  If a secondary school wants to offer 30 credits or more on 

their campus, they must submit a request to ERAU’s Senior Vice President 
for Academic Affairs at least 9 months in advance. If approved by ERAU 
officials, the secondary school and school district administrators will work 
with college officials to create and submit a "substantive change" to SACS.  
Approval must be received from SACS before the additional courses on the 
secondary school campus may be advertised or offered. 

 
K. The responsibilities of the school district regarding the determination of student 

eligibility before participating in the concurrent/dual enrollment program and 
the monitoring of student performance while participating in the 
concurrent/dual enrollment program 

 
1. Student screening for eligibility and participation is the responsibility of the 

secondary school principals according to district and state requirements. 
 

2. The secondary school counselor shall identify those students qualified to 
participate in concurrent/dual enrollment classes on a semester basis and 
will verify their continued eligibility throughout their participation. This 
verification will be conducted after grades are posted each semester. The 
counselor will notify ACA’s concurrent/dual enrollment officer when a 
student’s eligibility status changes.  
 

3. The secondary school counselor will work with students to include 
concurrent/dual enrollment course plans to minimize enrollment in a random 
selection of ERAU-ACA courses. 
 

4. ACA instructors will provide academic advising services to concurrent/dual 
enrollment students, monitor their progress and attendance in 
concurrent/dual enrollment classes, and provide progress and attendance 
reports to their secondary school at the college mid-term and upon 
completion of the college term. 
 

5. Students and their parents will be informed of college-level course 
expectations. 
 

6. Students attending concurrent/dual enrollment classes held in secondary 

Page 176 of 268

DRAFT



22 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

school facilities during regular school hours will be subject to the school 
district and FAA attendance policies when applicable. Required 
documentation of enrollment will be reported to the school district’s MIS 
offices and ERAU Records office. 

7. Students may enroll in courses conducted during school hours or extended
school hours. However, if the student is projected to graduate from
secondary school before the scheduled completion date of a post-secondary
course, the students may not register for that course through concurrent/dual
enrollment. The student may apply to ERAU and upon admission and
special permission by the Office of Admissions, may register and pay the
required tuition and fees.

8. CODE OF STUDENT CONDUCT: Students taking concurrent/dual
enrollment classes on their secondary school campus will be subject to their
school district’s code of conduct. If a student in secondary school class is
found to have plagiarized any portion of his/her course work or assignments,
the instructor will notify ERAU’s Dean of Students and the student will be
subject to the same disciplinary actions as other students taking courses on
the ERAU campus, regardless of disciplinary action is taken by their school
district. If a student is disruptive to the learning process through their
classroom behavior so that the progress of other students or the efficient
administration of the course is hindered, a student may lose the opportunity
to participate in the concurrent/dual enrollment course, regardless of
eligibility requirements for continued enrollment.

9. STUDENT RECORDS: The parties may provide personally identifiable
student records to each other in the performance of this Agreement. Such
records are provided pursuant to Section 1002.22(3)(d), Florida Statutes,
and 20 U.S.C.A. 1232g Each party further agrees to comply with Section
1002.22, Florida Statutes, and 20 U.S.C.A. 1232 f, including but not limited
to provisions related to confidentiality, access, consent, length of retention,
and security of student records.

L. The responsibilities of ACA regarding the transmission of student grades in
concurrent/dual enrollment courses to the school district.

1. Students with unsatisfactory progress reports should be counseled by the
secondary school guidance counselor immediately upon receipt of grades
from the instructor.

2. All students enrolled in concurrent/dual enrollment classes will be graded
on the same basis as other college students in the same courses. ACA will
assign letter grades to each student/course and the letter grade assigned shall
be posted to the student’s secondary school transcript by the school district.
Instructors will submit grades to the student’s secondary school and to

Page 177 of 268

DRAFT



23 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

ERAU. 

3. If a concurrent/dual enrollment student earns an F grade in any course(s)
during one semester he/she will no longer be eligible to participate in
concurrent/dual enrollment. A student who earns a D grade will be permitted
to retake that one course if offered, course may only be repeated once.

M. Accountability
This Agreement and the policies and allocation of responsibility shall be effective 
upon being signed by the representative authorized to commit the school districts and 
ACA  of Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University, but shall be executed before 
registration for the fall term of the following school year. Courses of study and 
programs are to be incorporated into the Agreement before instruction begins. This 
Agreement shall be valid for the 2025-2028 school year.
It is the responsibility of the high school dual enrollment specialist to notify ERAU’s 
ACA  Regional Directors or Education Director of all courses that the high school is 
requesting to offer. Each high school must complete the appropriate form for each 
course that the high school plans to offer. Based on need and faculty availability, 
ERAU will decide what courses can be offered on the high school campus.
It is the responsibility of the school administrative contact and instructor to verify their 
attendance rosters. ERAU instructors must check their online class rosters every day 
to ensure that the appropriate students are sitting in the class. If a student is not on the 
roster, the instructor should immediately notify the high school dual enrollment 
contact person. The high school dual enrollment contact person should notify ERAU’s 
ACA office. Students not properly enrolled in ERAU dual enrollment courses will 
NOT receive college credit. Roster verification is the responsibility of the school 
administration. E-Verify System
Pursuant to Fla. Stat. §448.095, Contractor agrees that it shall register with and use 
the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees during the term of this contract or 
solicitation.

a) Pursuant to Fla. Stat. §448.095, if Contractor enters into a contract with a 
subcontractor(s) for the labor, supplies or services provided under this 
contract or solicitation, Contractor must require that the subcontractor(s) 
provide it with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does not employ, 
contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien.  The Contractor 
understands that it must maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration 
of the contract or solicitation.

b) If School Board has a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly 
violated Fla. Stat.§448.09, School Board shall terminate the contract with 
the Contractor. The Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by

Page 178 of 268

DRAFT



24 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

the School Board as a result of a termination of this contract or solicitation 
pursuant to §448.095(2)(f).  

c) If School Board has a good faith belief that a subcontractor(s) has
knowingly violated §448.095, but contractor has otherwise complied with
this subsection, School Board shall promptly notify Contractor and order
Contractor to immediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor(s).

Remainder of page left blank intentionally 

Page 179 of 268

DRAFT



25 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Attachment C 
Programmatic Information for School Based Administrators 

As a Gaetz Aerospace Career Academy (ACA) Dual Enrollment (DE) and SMART@ER 
course member school, the MOU with YOUR school district includes the following 
requirements: 

1. ACADEMIC CALENDAR: Instructors and Students are held to the ACA
academic calendar and deadlines, not those of the school district where grades and
enrollment are concerned.

2. AUDITING ACA dual enrollment COURSES: Students are not allowed to audit
ACA  dual enrollment courses.

3. CONCURRENT CLASSES: ACA member schools are not permitted to co-
mingle concurrent enrollment students this includes:

a. Dual Enrollment (DE) and SMART@ER or regular FLDOE high school classes
cannot be taught by a single teacher at the same time with students who share
the same classroom.

b. Where one of the classes concerned is a GAI SMART@ER class, multiple high
school classes cannot be taught at the same time, by the same teacher, in the
same classroom.  This includes CTE classes.

4. ENROLLMENT:
a. New dual enrollment students must complete the 1) Online Application, and 2)

the Consent Form before published deadlines.  A failure to complete these
processes by the deadline means removal from the class roster.

b. All DE students must enroll in their courses online each semester prior to the
published deadlines.  A failure to complete these processes by the deadline
means removal from the class roster.

5. ENROLLMENT MAXIMUM: The maximum number of students in any ACA
affiliated class is 30.  Any class that numbers more than 30 students must either:

a. Create an additional section to accommodate less than 30 students, or
b. Decrease the number of students to 30 or less.

6. ENROLLMENT MINIMUM: The minimum number of students in any ACA
affiliated class is:

a. For schools that have 1,800 or more students, the minimum number of students
is 15.  If a school wishes to enroll fewer than 15 students, then it must send a
waiver request to the ACA Director via the Regional Director and the ACA
Scheduler.

Page 180 of 268

DRAFT



26 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

b. For schools that have less than 1,800 students, the minimum number of students
is 10.  If a school wishes to enroll less than 10 students, then they must send a
waiver request to the ACA Director via the Regional Director and the ACA
Scheduler.

7. ACA EQUIPMENT:  Within the MOU, “ACA Equipment” and “Equipment”
does not include computers, computer hardware, and software.

a. ERAU issues equipment to instructors/schools to be used in ERAU sponsored
courses. Equipment includes UASs (drones), 3D printers, iPads, flight
simulators, virtual reality, etc.

b. Equipment issued to instructor/school remains the property of ERAU unless
otherwise noted in writing. All equipment must be kept in a secure area at the
school and safeguarded against theft, damage or unauthorized use.

c. Failure to maintain, secure and prevent unauthorized use of equipment will
result in the return of equipment to ERAU and disqualify the instructor/school
from future equipment distribution.

d. Equipment audits will be conducted annually by ERAU representatives.
Equipment may not be transferred to another school location without explicit
consent from ERAU.

e. Damaged, Loss or Theft of Equipment – contact the ACA office to report
damaged or missing equipment. ERAU will require a police report for missing
equipment due to theft. If the equipment has been lost, ERAU will require an
incident report from the school.

8. ORDER OF COURSES: AS 120 (Principles of Aeronautics) and AS 121 (Private
Pilot Ground school) must be taken in order.

a. Member schools can enroll students to take AS 121 AFTER AS 120 has
been completed if the student so wishes.

b. Member schools CANNOT enroll students to take AS 120 after AS 121.

9. SCHEDULE CHANGES: Changes in course, adding/deleting course sections
must have administrative approval and provided in writing to ERAU prior to course
commencing.

10. STUDENT CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR: A student will lose the opportunity
to participate in a course if the student is disruptive to the learning process such that
the progress of other students or the efficient administration of the course is
hindered.  In addition, a student will be sanctioned accordingly if found to violate
any of the ERAU student code of conduct standards.

11. STUDENT ENTRY REQUIREMENTS: Students must be in grades 10-12 for
DE courses and have a minimum 2.5 unweighted GPA. Any exceptions must be
requested in writing from the school administration stating just cause.

Page 181 of 268

DRAFT



27 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

12. STUDENT ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE:
a. Students who earn a “D” grade may retake that one class. Courses may only be

repeated once.
b. Students who earn an “F” grade in a course are no longer eligible to enroll in

ACA courses.
c. ACA students who withdraw two times are no longer eligible to participate in

the program.

13. TESTING FEES:
a. For ACA courses that include a certification test as part of the prescribed

syllabus, ACA will pay the initial testing fees for the ACA student only.

i. Either ACA will prepay the testing fee to the vendor or they will reimburse
the member school when invoiced (in one group invoice) for the testing
fees that were outlaid by the school.

ii. Individual/personal student expenses for testing will not be reimbursed by
ACA.

iii. To be reimbursed, test receipts and testing scores from the testing entity
must be submitted.

b. For ACA courses that do not include a certification test for which the school
and Instructor wish to test an ACA student:

i. A written request must be sent to ACA ahead of the testing date and a
written agreement to reimburse the test must be received from ACA in
order for ACA to reimburse the school for any testing monies outlaid.

ii. Individual/personal student expenses for testing will not be reimbursed by
ACA.

iii. To be reimbursed, test receipts and passing test scores from the testing
entity must be submitted.  Failing scores will not be reimbursed.

Remainder of page left blank intentionally 

Page 182 of 268

DRAFT



28 | P a g e
ERAU Concurrent/Dual Enrollment 2025 

Appendix A AY 25-26 

List of courses being taught in the Clay County School District, Florida: 

Fall 2025 

Location Level Title 
Fleming Island HS DE AS 120 - Principles of Aeronautical Science 
Keystone Heights HS DE HSI 110 - Introduction to Homeland Security 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 120 - Principles of Aeronautical Science 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 120 - Principles of Aeronautical Science 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 241 - UAS Systems Architecture and Integration 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 121a - Private Pilot Operations 
Middleburg HS DE AS 120 - Principles of Aeronautical Science 
Oakleaf High School DE AS 120 - Principles of Aeronautical Science 
Oakleaf High School HS sUAS - Small UAS Safety Operations 
Orange Park High School DE EGR 101 - Introduction to Engineering 
Orange Park High School HS Aerospace: The Journey of Flight 

Spring 2026 

Location Level Title 
Fleming Island HS DE AS 220 - Uncrewed Aircraft Systems 
Keystone Heights HS DE BA 201 - Principles of Management 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 220 - Uncrewed Aircraft Systems 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 220 - Uncrewed Aircraft Systems 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 222 - Uncrewed Aircraft Systems Security 
Keystone Heights HS DE AS 121b - Private Pilot Operations 
Middleburg HS DE HSI 110 - Introduction to Homeland Security 
Oakleaf High School DE SS 130 - History of Aviation in America 
Oakleaf High School HS sUAS - Small UAS Safety Operations - continued 
Orange Park High School DE CS 223 - Scientific Programming in C 
Orange Park High School HS Aerospace: The Journey of Flight - continued 

** Future schedules to be supplied with invoice** 

Page 183 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - University of Florida Affiliation Agreement- School Psychologist EdS student placement

Description
The School Board of Clay County in partnership with the University of Florida College of Education to provide interns
from programs preparing individuals to enter the workforce in the field of educational psychology.  Both parties have a common
desire to approve an agreement to include all schools within Clay County, Florida and under the governance of the Clay County
School Board, for various scenarios of experience for school psychologist. 

Gap Analysis
Current and prospective school psychologist rely on Cay County District Schools for placement at internship sites to ensure their
completion of School Psychologist Masters and Ed Specialist degree programs and state certification requirements.
This agreement is vital to our placement of qualified school psychologist. 

Previous Outcomes
Intern placements have successfully completed required field work to progress towards their degree programs and state
certification requirements.  Often these certified school psychologist interns have gone on to permanent employment with Clay
County District Schools. 

Expected Outcomes
 Increase placement of qualified school psychologist.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 4: Safe and Positive Learning Environment. A district wide plan ensures that students at all schools have access to quality
counseling services to support their mental health and wellness by increasing strategies that specifically address student
resilience, positive behavior and life skills.

Recommendation
That the school board approve the contract for University of Florida Affiliation Agreement- School Psychologist EdS student
placement as submitted..

Contact
Kellie Guilfoyle, Director of Climate and Culture

Financial Impact
Minimal financial impact to the school district is expected with payment to interns as adult labor.

Review Comments

Attachments

250185 University of FL Intership MOU.pdf

Page 184 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/250185-university-of-fl-intership-mou.pdf


FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
Contract #______________________

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.

CONTRACT REVIEW
BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS
REQUIRED DO  NOT PLACE ITEM ON

AGENDA UNTIL  
REVIEW IS COMPLETED

□ Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00

Date Submitted:  April 30, 2025

Name of Contract Initiator:  Juliane McQuaig Telephone #: 904-336-6927

School/Dept Submitting Contract:  School Psychology/Student Services/Climate and Culture    Cost Center #
9004

Vendor Name:  University of Florida

Contract Title:  University of Florida Affiliation Agreement- School Psychologist EdS student placement

Contract Type: New □ Renewal  Amendment □ Extension □ Previous Year Contract #

Contract Term: Effective Date and continue until terminated. Termination (30) calendar day’s written notice

Contract Cost:$0

□ BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT
Funding Source: Budget Line

#_________________________________________________________________  Funding Source:
Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________

□ NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO
PURCHASING DEPT □ INTERNAL ACCOUNT - IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND
CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE (when applicable): 
X
______ Completed Contract Review Form
X
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School)
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract) - When using the Addendum A, this Statement MUST BE included in the body of
the Contract:  “The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall govern and prevail
over any conflicting terms and/or  conditions herein stated.”
X
______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements:
 COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder. Insurer must be rated as A-

or better.  General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate.
 Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses).
 Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum

[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form. If not exempt,
vendor/contractor must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 

______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable)
______ Release and Hold Harmless (If Applicable)

**AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY **

CONTRACT
REVIEWED BY:

COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT

Purchasing
Department 

Review Date

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________

School Board
Attorney 

Review Date

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________

250185

Next time please use correct Contract Review Form.
No Cost

X

Approved. JPS
5/14

Page 185 of 268

DRAFT



Other Dept. as
Necessary

Review Date

PENDING
STATUS: □YES
□NO

IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY
INITIATOR

FINAL STATUS DATE:______________________

PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023 Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web)

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS
A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts. Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as
to the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The
term  consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider)
and any  non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name.
All Board  contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or
Department may  extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o
________________  (insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of".

All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing  to
ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract.
All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by
the Board Chairman. All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or
appropriate  District administrator based on the value of the contract. 

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of
the  contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a
separate  entry as part of the monthly financial report.

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs.
3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized

Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals.

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was
previously approved by the Board.

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written.

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract
 (School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged)

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District /
School.  

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts:
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3
For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School:
Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing
Department.   Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may
reach out to   Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.
SBAO  will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator.

 Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.

Step 4: If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO. 
 Email: contractreview@myoneclay.net
 The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes: 
 Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR 
Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy.
 If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 
Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order. Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order.

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-
6507 For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-
336-6745 For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736

_______________________________________________________________The IT Department has confirmed our DSA is not needed per E. Caren email 5/16/2025 - BFS

Pending Signatures

Page 186 of 268

DRAFT



1 

THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA 
AGREEMENT  

FOR 
STUDENT INTERNSHIP 

THIS AGREEMEMENT FOR STUDENT INTERNSHIP (“Agreement”), dated as of 
_____________, 2025 (“Effective Date”), is entered into by and between Clay County District 
Schools, the internship site (the “Site”),  and the University of Florida Board of Trustees, a public 
body corporate of the State of Florida, for the benefit of its College of Education (the “University”), 
also referenced individually as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 

PURPOSE 

A. The University has a responsibility to train students in education and requires its students
gain practical experience in various disciplines to complete their professional preparation
and development.

B. The Site, in support and enhancement of the educational programs of the University, is
willing and qualified to provide a practical setting at its facilities for University students
to participate in activities designed to enhance their educational experience, commonly
referenced as a clinical field placement (the “Internship”).

C. The primary benefit of the Internship will be to the student intern.
D. The educational programs of the University will be enhanced through its relationship

with the Site and its cooperative efforts.
E. The Site will benefit through the skills and efforts of University student(s) during the

internship period.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date
and continue until terminated by either Party pursuant to provision 13. of this Agreement
(“Term”).

2. Student Participation and Assignment. The University shall determine, in its sole discretion,
which of its enrolled students are eligible to participate in the Internship.  The University
shall assign an eligible student(s) for an Internship at the Site.  The student is required to
provide a minimum of 15 direct service hours per week at the Site during the Internship
period.  The student assignment schedule shall be set by the Site, in consultation with the
student and may be modified by mutual agreement of the Site, the student and the University
without formal amendment to this Agreement.

3. Right to Refuse. The Site shall have the right to refuse to accept any student(s) assigned to
the Site by notifying the University, in writing, within thirty (30) days of said assignment.

4. Educational Plan.  The Site shall allow the student to participate in various activities during
the Internship, including but not limited to those activities that will further the educational
goals of the student.  The objective of the Internship is for the student to have practical

Page 187 of 268

DRAFT



2 

exposure to the course work completed at the University. 

5. Educational Program.  The University shall plan and administer the educational program for
its students and be responsible for the enrollment of its students in University courses,
including the Internship.

6. Student Records.  The University shall maintain all student educational records and reports
relating to the University’s educational programs completed by students during the
Internship.

7. Student Supervision and Evaluation.  The Site shall ensure that its qualified employees
supervise the students in the performance of their duties during the Internship and shall
evaluate the student(s) performance monthly, using a standard evaluation form provided by
the University.  The University shall provide a person to serve as its Internship Coordinator
to oversee its education program and coordinate program activities with the Site.

8. Student Use of Site Facility. The Site shall permit the students to use its facilities and
amenities, including but not limited to office/workspace, cafeteria, restrooms and parking on
the same basis utilized by its employees.

9. Site Background Checks. The University does not perform background checks on students.
If required by the Site, the Site shall provide the University with a security background
information form to be completed by the student(s) and provide a process for fingerprinting
and criminal records background check to be performed by the Site or another entity at its
discretion and expense. The Site, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether a University
student has satisfactorily cleared the security screening.

10. Notification of Site Requirements. The Site shall notify the University, in writing, of any Site
specific Internship requirements and/or rules prior to student placement.  Upon notification
by the Site, the University shall notify the student(s) of any Site-specific Internship
requirement(s) as a condition of their participation, including but not limited to background
checks, student participation agreements, professional liability insurance and vaccinations.
The University shall notify the student(s) of any Site specific rules and/or policies provided
by the Site to the University, and the student’s obligation to follow said rules and/or policies
in order to successfully complete the Internship.

11. Student Conduct.   University students are not employees or agents of the University.
Accordingly, the University is not responsible for the conduct of its students during the
Internship.

a. During the Internship, students are required to follow the
University’s Student Conduct Code, a University regulation relating to student 
conduct and academic honesty. If a student’s conduct rises to the level of 
violation of the University’s Student Conduct Code, the Site agrees to promptly 
notify the University in writing.   

b. The University shall honor any request by the Site to remove a
student from the Internship whose conduct or performance is not, in the Site’s 
opinion, professionally acceptable. 

Page 188 of 268

DRAFT



3 

12. Safety and Security Information. The Site will provide the student with information
regarding any known risk or safety issues surrounding the student’s Internship environment,
including the parking area and path of travel from the parking area to the Site facility.  In
addition, the Site will provide the student with applicable safety protocols and training
necessary for their safe and successful participation in the Internship.

13. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party with or without cause upon
thirty (30) calendar day’s written notice to the other party of its desire to terminate this
Agreement.

14. Liability. Each Party assumes any and all risks of personal injury and property damage
attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of their respective officers, employees,
servants, and agents thereof while acting within the scope of their employment. The
University and the Site further agree that nothing contained herein shall be construed or
interpreted as (1) denying to either Party any remedy or defense available to such Party under
the laws of the State of Florida; (2) the consent of the University or the State of Florida or its
officers, employees, servants, agents and agencies to be sued; and (3) a waiver of sovereign
immunity of the University or the State of Florida beyond the limited waiver provided in
section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

15. Insurance.
a. University. The University, as a public body corporate, participates

in the State of Florida’s Risk Management Trust Fund for purposes of general 
liability, workers’ compensation, and employer’s liability insurance coverage, 
with said coverage being applicable to University’s officers, employees, servants, 
and agents while acting within the scope of their employment or agency. 
Students are not officers, employees, servants or agents of the University and 
are not covered under the University’s insurance.  

b. Site. The Site represents it has obtained and shall keep in force
during the Term of this Agreement, at the Site’s expense, commercial general 
liability insurance insuring against bodily injury and property damage liability, 
with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 per injury or 
occurrence with respect to any insured liability.  

16. Professional Liability Insurance. The University does not provide professional liability
insurance for students. If such insurance is required by the Site, the University will notify the
student that the Site requires the student to purchase professional liability insurance.

17. Non-Discrimination Policy. The Parties agree that in fulfilling their obligations under this
Agreement, no person shall be subjected to discrimination based on age, race, color,
disability, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, national origin, creed, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, political opinions or affiliations, genetic information or veteran
status.

18. Compliance with Law.  The Parties agree to comply with all applicable state and federal laws
and regulations, including but not limited to antidiscrimination laws such as the Americans
with Disabilities Act and its amendments. The Site further agrees that it shall be solely
responsible for ensuring the Internship, its facilities and equipment are accessible to students
with disabilities.

Page 189 of 268

DRAFT



4 

19. Public Records. This Agreement is and any other documents made or received by the
University in connection with this Agreement are public records, which must be made
available to the public upon request in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless
otherwise deemed confidential and/or exempt from disclosure.

20. Representatives. The following Party representatives are the primary point of contact for the
Internship and are designated as follows:

a. University:  Dr. Lori Dassa
Director of Clinical Experiences and Partnerships 
1023A Norman Hall Gainesville, FL 32601 
ldassa@coe.ufl.edu 
(352) 273-2051

b. Site: Clay County District Schools 
900 Center Street 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
(specific school sites to be determined) 

In the event that different representatives are designated by either Party after execution of this 
Agreement, the name and contact information of the new representatives shall be furnished in 
writing to the other Party.  

21. Notices. All notices required or permitted pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and
sent via email to the Party Representatives listed in provision 20.

22. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance
with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any litigation between Parties shall be
commenced and maintained exclusively in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Florida or the state courts in and for Alachua County, Florida.

23. Entire Agreement. This document incorporates and includes all prior negotiations,
correspondence,  conversations,  agreements  and  understandings applicable to the matters
contained herein and the Parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements or
understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained in this
document.  Accordingly, the Parties agree that no deviation from the terms hereof shall be
predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral or written.

24. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

25. Amendments. No modification, amendment, or alteration in the terms or conditions
contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document prepared with the
same or similar formality as this Agreement and executed by each Party hereto.

26. Severability. This Agreement is severable such that should any provision of this Agreement
be or become invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue in full effect.

27. Waiver. The Parties agree that each requirement, duty and obligation set forth herein is

Page 190 of 268

DRAFT



subsequent  breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the 
terms of this Agreement.   

28. Assignment. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the parties  hereto, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors,
and assigns; however, no  party may assign any of its rights or responsibilities
under this Agreement without the prior  written consent of the other party.

29. Independent Contractor. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
construed as creating  a joint venture, partnership, or agency relationship
between the parties. Neither shall be  bound by the acts or conduct of the other.

30. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. The signature
page of this  Agreement may be delivered by facsimile or other electronic
transmission and the signatures  thereon shall be deemed effective upon receipt
by the intended receiving party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly 
authorized officers to  execute and deliver this Agreement as of the date first 
above written.  

FOR CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF 
FLORIDA  BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES:  

By:_____________________________           By:________________________________

Name:  Erin Skipper Name:______________________________

Title:  Board Chair            Title:  Interim Provost

 Date:____________________________       Date:_______________________________

Recommended By Name: Lori Dassa  

Title: Director of Clinical Experiences 

and Partnerships

Docusign Envelope ID: 08F2A3CA-80FB-4ABB-85E7-6D8EE8D250B2

Joseph Glover

5/28/2025 | 4:02 PM EDT

Page 191 of 268

DRAFT



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 08F2A3CA-80FB-4ABB-85E7-6D8EE8D250B2 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: MOU -THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA.pdf

Process: 

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 6 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 1 Initials: 0 Kimberly Bagley

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)

971 Elmore Drive, Rm 102

PO Box 115250

Gainesville, FL  32611

k.bagley@ufl.edu

IP Address: 128.227.227.67

Record Tracking
Status: Original

5/21/2025 3:03:57 PM

Holder: Kimberly Bagley

k.bagley@ufl.edu

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Joseph Glover

glover@ufl.edu

Provost

University of Florida

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 128.227.249.52

Sent: 5/21/2025 3:04:55 PM

Viewed: 5/28/2025 4:01:57 PM 

Signed: 5/28/2025 4:02:30 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via Docusign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 5/21/2025 3:04:55 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 5/28/2025 4:01:57 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 5/28/2025 4:02:30 PM

Completed Security Checked 5/28/2025 4:02:30 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Page 192 of 268

DRAFT



Staefe, Bertha <bertha.staefe@myoneclay.net>

Re: FW: Clay County District Schools - Intern MOU - UF Intern Contract 250185
1 message

Caren, Ethan <ethan.caren@myoneclay.net> Fri, May 16, 2025 at 3:47 PM
To: "Staefe, Bertha" <bertha.staefe@myoneclay.net>
Cc: District Office Purchasing <District9056@myoneclay.net>

Hi Bertie,
I reviewed the MOU and it appears that it does not require the release of records to UF and thus does not require a DPS. The
students and their records referenced in the MOU are the student interns.

I hope that helps!
Ethan

On Thu, May 15, 2025 at 4:48 PM Staefe, Bertha <bertha.staefe@myoneclay.net> wrote:
Please see pink email below from UF regarding the DPA for Contract 250185 that we requested from them.

Bertha Staefe
Supervisor of Purchasing, Property Control and Print Center
Clay County District Schools
phone 904-336-6736| ext 6 6736
email bertha.staefe@myoneclay.net

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Mcquaig, Juliane <juliane.mcquaig@myoneclay.net>
Date: Thu, May 15, 2025 at 4:00 PM
Subject: Fwd: FW: Clay County District Schools - Intern MOU
To: Staefe, Bertha F. <bertha.staefe@myoneclay.net>

Please see the email below indicating that they do not need to sign the Data
Agreement.  
Juliane Mcquaig, Ed.S.
District Lead School Psychologist
Clay County District Schools
| phone 904-336-6895| ext 66927
| web oneclay.net | email juliane.mcquaig@myoneclay.net

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Dassa,Lori Michelle <ldassa@coe.ufl.edu>
Date: Thu, May 15, 2025 at 3:33 PM
Subject: Re: FW: Clay County District Schools - Intern MOU
To: Mcquaig, Juliane <juliane.mcquaig@myoneclay.net>

Good afternoon,

After speaking with legal I can report:

The MOU portion is fine, but we won’t sign the addendum privacy agreement. It doesn’t apply in this context
because UF will not be directly accessing student records, only interns will. This is how the contract defines

Page 193 of 268

DRAFT



[External Email]

“provider”: “WHEREAS, the Provider is providing educational or digital services to LEA.” That doesn’t apply to
us because students are not employers or agents of UF, therefore UF is not providing educational or digital
services. 

For example, the addendum attaches exhibit A which lists all the services UF is providing to Clay County, while
exhibit B is a checklist of all the ways data will be shared. However, there are no services listed on exhibit A
and none of the boxes are checked on exhibit B. So, one of two things is going on: (1) none of this stuff
actually applies to UF (which it doesn’t), or (2) we’re supposed to sign and find out later what contract terms
Clay county wants to use. Obviously, neither scenario is acceptable.

Also, we have our own privacy obligations, and we don’t outsource oversight of those obligations to school
districts.

Best Wishes,

Image

Lori Dassa EdD

Director of Clinical Experiences and Partnerships

College of Education

University of Florida

1023A Norman Hall

(352) 273-2051

ldassa@coe.ufl.edu

From: Mcquaig, Juliane <juliane.mcquaig@myoneclay.net>
Date: Thursday, May 15, 2025 at 2:33 PM
To: Dassa,Lori Michelle <ldassa@coe.ufl.edu>
Subject: Re: FW: Clay County District Schools - Intern MOU

Good afternoon,

Thank you for reaching out. I’ve just received the approved version of the MOU, which includes an additional edit related to
the Data Share Agreement. Please review and sign it at your earliest convenience, as I need to submit it for inclusion in the

school board agenda. 
Page 194 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2025-2026 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Ms. Dawn Posey, CPA, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, dawn.posey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

08.07.25 - 25-26 Allocation Summary.pdf

Page 195 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/080725-25-26-allocation-summary_1.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS  2025-2026 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, August 7, 2025

Pending Board Approval 08/07/2025

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2025-2026 ACTIONS

General Funds

MRE - 0511 0.9 ESE General Health Asst.
Correct changes made during RIF. Cost 
already included in budget. $0) $0) $0)

MRE - 0511 (0.9) ESE General Assistant
Correct changes made during RIF. Cost 
already included in budget. $0) $0) $0)

POE - 0651 (0.9) ESE General Assistant
Correct changes made during RIF. Cost 
already included in budget. $0) $0) $0)

RVE - 0401 (1.0) Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($29,753) ($10,446) ($40,199)

RVE - 0401 1.0 Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. $33,369) $11,716) $45,085)

LJH - 0351 (1.0) Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($29,753) ($10,446) ($40,199)

LJH - 0351 1.0 Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. $33,369) $11,716) $45,085)

WJH - 0371 (1.0) Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($33,369) ($11,716) ($45,085)

WJH - 0371 1.0 Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. $29,753) $10,446) $40,199)

RHS - 0431 (1.0) Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($29,753) ($10,446) ($40,199)

RHS - 0431 1.0 Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. $33,369) $11,716) $45,085)
TOTAL: $7,232) $2,539) $9,771)

Page 196 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2024-2025 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
 These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
 Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
 The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dawn Posey, CPA, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, dawn.posey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

08.07.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary.xlsx - 2024-25.pdf

Page 197 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/080725-24-25-allocation-summaryxlsx-2024-25.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS  2024-2025 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, August 7, 2025

Pending Board Approval 08/07/2025

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2024-2025 ACTIONS

General Funds

LJH - 0351 (1.0) Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($29,753) ($10,446) ($40,199)

LJH - 0351 1.0 Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. $33,369) $11,716) $45,085)

WJH - 0371 (1.0) Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($33,369) ($11,716) ($45,085)

WJH - 0371 1.0 Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. $29,753) $10,446) $40,199)

RHS - 0431 (1.0) Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($29,753) ($10,446) ($40,199)

RHS - 0431 1.0 Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. $33,369) $11,716) $45,085)

RVE - 0401 (1.0) Licensed Practical Nurse Align allocation with current position. ($29,753) ($10,446) ($40,199)

RVE - 0401 1.0 Registered Nurse Align allocation with current position. $33,369) $11,716) $45,085)
TOTAL: $7,232) $2,539) $9,771)

Page 198 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - July, 2025

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of June, 2025.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by the School Board of Clay County prior to disposition.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report -  July, 2025 as submitted.

Contact
Dawn Posey,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
dawn.posey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION REPORT JULY, 2025.pdf

DELETION ANALYSIS JULY 2025- 2026 - Sheet1.pdf

Page 199 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-july-2025.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-analysis-july-2025-2026-sheet1.pdf


Depreciation

07/31/2025

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0331 S BRYAN JENNINGS ELEMENTARY

2,401.75 0.00CART:INSTRUCTIONAL W/PROJECTOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  07/01/2025 07/24/200800087747
0.002,401.75

LCTN 0521 FLEMING ISLAND ELEMENTARY
1,219.97 0.00LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 02/20/201818100282

0.001,219.97

LCTN 9002 CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION
1,219.97 0.00LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 02/20/201818100281

0.001,219.97

LCTN 9010 TRANSPORTATION
2,561.96 365.99MACHINE: COOLANT EXCHANGE MAHL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  07/01/2025 10/26/201718000121

365.992,561.96

LCTN 9060 HUMAN RESOURCES
1,219.97 0.00LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 02/20/201818100263
1,219.97 0.00LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 02/20/201818100228
1,239.37 413.12LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 5320 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 09/29/202122100005
1,191.39 397.13LAPTOP:  DELL LATITUDE 5530 15 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 10/04/202223100052

810.254,870.70

LCTN 9105 ESOL
1,998.00 0.00IMAC: APPLE 27 " Z0RT" Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 05/12/201616000616

0.001,998.00

LCTN 9252 SEDNET
5,129.00 183.18COPIER: COLOR RICOH MPC4504 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  07/01/2025 10/13/201617000174

183.185,129.00

07/31/202507/01/2025Date Range 113:27:3907/01/2025

Page 200 of 268

DRAFT



Depreciation

07/31/2025

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method

19,401.35
Totals for Deletion Report

1,359.42

Note:
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
19,401.35

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

07/31/202507/01/2025Date Range 213:27:3907/01/2025

Page 201 of 268

DRAFT



Monthly Deletion Analysis / JULY 2025 2026
Cost Center Asset Item, Reason for Deletion Type of Deletion
SBJ - 0331 00087747 CART:INSTRUCTIONAL W/PROJECTOR / BROKEN D5

FIE - 0521 18100282 LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 / BROKEN D1

CTE - 9002 18100281 LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 / BROKEN D1

TRANSPORTATION - 9010 18000121 MACHINE: COOLANT EXCHANGE / BROKEN D5

HR - 9060 23100052 LAPTOP:  DELL LATITUDE 5530 / BROKEN D1
22100005 LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 5320 / BROKEN D1
18100263 LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 / BROKEN D1
18100228 LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE 7389 / BROKEN D1

ESOL - 9105 16000616 IMAC: APPLE 27 " Z0RT" / BROKEN D1

SEDNET - 9252 17000174 COPIER: COLOR RICOH MPC4504 / BROKEN D1

D1 = PARTED OUT/JUNK
D5 = SURPLUS SALES

Page 202 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - MOU Between Clay County District Schools and the Clay County Sheriff’s Office to provide access to the Chris Hixon,
Coach Aaron Feis, and Coach Scott Beigel Guardian Program.

Description
Funds are available from the General Revenue Fund, State of Florida to the Department of Education for the CCSO to establish a
school guardian program pursuant to s. 30.15(k) Florida Statutes.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
CCSO provided access to a school guardian program for CCDS.

Expected Outcomes
The Board will approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the Clay County Sheriff’s Office.  CCSO will apply for and
receive the funding under the Chris Hixon, Coach Aaron Feis, and Scott Beigel Guardian Program. The CCSO will administer
the account for the funds, including initiation of purchase orders, payment of invoices, as applicable, etc., for approved budget
line items. The CCSO will not charge for administering this grant.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the Clay County Sheriff’s Office

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Matthew Boyack, Director of Safety & Security, (904) 336-6846, matthew.boyack@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

260006 MOU CCSD and CCSO Guardian Program 3yr 8.7.25.pdf

Page 203 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/260006-mou-ccsd-and-ccso-guardian-program-3yr-8725.pdf


Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2020, SBAO (web) 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
           Contract #______________________

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.   

BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO  
NOT PLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL  

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
 Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00

Date Submitted: 

Name of Contract Initiator:     Telephone #: 

School/Dept Submitting Contract:      Cost Center # 

Vendor Name: 

Contract Title: 

Contract Type:   New □   Renewal □   Amendment □   Extension □      Previous Year Contract # 

Contract Term:     Renewal Option(s): 

Contract Cost: 

 BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

       Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 
       Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 

 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT  ‐ SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

 INTERNAL ACCOUNT ‐  IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO

 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE (when applicable): 
______ Completed Contract Review Form 
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School) 
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract)* 

*This Statement MUST BE included in the body of the  Contract: 
“The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall 
govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or conditions herein stated.”

______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements: 
     COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder.  Insurer must be rated as A‐ or better. 

General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate. 
Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum 
[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form.  If not exempt, vendor/contractor 

         must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 
______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ COVID‐19 Waiver (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ Release and Hold Harmless  (If Applicable) 
 

 **AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 

CONTRACT REVIEWED BY:  COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Department 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

School Board Attorney 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

PENDING STATUS:  YES    NO  IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

FINAL STATUS         DATE:______________________ 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

250087

260006

9022XXXXXXXX

X

/ Matthew Boyack
/ Safety & Security

Need copy of Grant

2025 - 8/31/2028

Pending Signatures & Copy of Grant.

Page 204 of 268

DRAFT



Page 205 of 268

DRAFT



Page 206 of 268

DRAFT



Page 207 of 268

DRAFT



Page 208 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Fleming Island High School HVAC Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $1,097,736.80 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $62,206.80 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 FIH HVAC Repair Replacement

Page 209 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-fih-hvac-repair-replacement_1.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

SDCC PROJECT NAME: FLEMING ISLAND HIGH HVAC REPAIR/REPLACEMENT 

SDCC PROJECT NO: C-34-24/25 

The Owner authorized the Contractor to make the following change(s) in the contract 
dated December 12, 2024. 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 3,447,318.40 
REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT BY PREVIOUS CHANGE ORDER(S): $ 0.00 

Change(s) and reason(s) for this Change Order: Direct Purchase of construction materials by the 
Clay County School Board. 

For these changes: □ Add to ■ Deduct from the Contract in accordance with the conditions of the 
Contract the sum of: One million, ninety-seven thousand, seven hundred thirty-six dollars and 
80/100. 

CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 3,447,318.40 
ADDITION TO CONTRACT: $ 0.00 
DEDUCTION TO CONTRACT: $ 1,097,736.80 
REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 2,349,581.60 

ARCHITECT/ENGINEER CERTIFICATION: In my considered professional opinion, as Project 
Architect/Engineer, the prices quoted in this Change Order are both fair and reasonable and in 
the proper ratio to the cost of the original work contract under benefit of competitive bidding. 

Signature: ___ N_/_A ____________ _ Date: N/A 
-----

Architect 

By execution of this Change Order, the Contractor acknowledges that all issues related to 
compensation and time have been resolved and payment recited herein is full compensation for 
the work identified in this Change Order. 

ACCEPTED: Signature: __ Ar"_.--�----,------ Date:
-----

May 5, 2025 

Date: 

APPROVED: Signature: ______ ___________ Date: ______ _ 
School Board Chairman 

M!S15010 

EFF 7/10/08 

Page 210 of 268

DRAFT



Page 211 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Final Completion of Clay High School Roof Repair/Replacement

Description
Establish a Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF)
and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the project manager and project architect/engineer, has reached final
completion on June 17, 2025, in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Final Completion for CHS Roof Repair Replacement

Page 212 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-for-chs-roof-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 213 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Keystone Heights High School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $175,948.88 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $10,100.88 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for KHS Security Lighting

Page 214 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-khs-securty-lighting.pdf


Page 215 of 268

DRAFT



Page 216 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $78,629.46 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $4,521.48 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 POE Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

Page 217 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-poe-fire-alarm-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 218 of 268

DRAFT



Page 219 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Oakleaf Village Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $83,605.99 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $4,803.17 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 OVE Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

Page 220 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-ove-fire-alarm-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 221 of 268

DRAFT



Page 222 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Tynes Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $101,521.48 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $5,817.25 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 TES Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

Page 223 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-tes-fire-alarm-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 224 of 268

DRAFT



Page 225 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Change Order #2 for Keystone Heights High School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for the addition of two light fixtures and a material delivery delay. Seventy-
nine (79) additional calendar days will be added to the contract.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $4,670.14. Architect fees contracted at 8% will increase by
$373.61 as a result of this change order. These funds are available and budgeted in Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 KHS Security Lighting

Page 226 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-khs-security-lighting.pdf


Page 227 of 268

DRAFT



Page 228 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Change Order #1 for Wilkinson Junior High School Control Access

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for access control modifications, window shades, and protective film to the
storefront. Six (6) additional calendar days will be added to the contract.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $30,549.46. Architect fees contracted at 7% will increase by
$2,138.46 as a result of this change order. These funds are available and budgeted in Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 WJH Control Access

Page 229 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-wjh-control-access.pdf


Page 230 of 268

DRAFT



Page 231 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Change Order #2 for Orange Park High School Gym/Locker Room Renovations

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for additional scope of work involving a new badge reader location, low
voltage conduits, paint over stucco walls in four areas, and CMU repairs at window jambs.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $21,249.21. Architect fees contracted at 7% will increase by
$1,487.44 as a result of this change order. These funds are available and budgeted in Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 OPH Gym Locker Room Renovations

Page 232 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-oph-gym-locker-room-renovations.pdf


Page 233 of 268

DRAFT



Page 234 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Shadowlawn Elementary School HVAC Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $458,104.48 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $26,001.20 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) SLE HVAC

Page 235 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-sle-hvac_1.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 

SDCC PROJECT NAME: SHADOWLAWN ELEMENTARY HVAC REPAIR/REPLACEMENT 

SDCC PROJECT NO: C-37-24/25 

The Owner authorized the Contractor to make the following change(s) in the contract 
dated November 7, 2024. 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 736,750.00 
REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT BY PREVIOUS CHANGE ORDER(S): $ 0.00 

Change(s) and reason(s) for this Change Order: Direct Purchase of construction materials by the 
Clay County School Board. 

For these changes: □ Add to ■ Deduct from the Contract in accordance with the conditions of the 
Contract the sum of: Four hundred fifty-eight thousand, one hundred and four dollars and 48/100. 

CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 736,750.00 
ADDITION TO CONTRACT: .... $ __ ___,o __ .o�o 
DEDUCTION TO CONTRACT: $ 458,104.48 
REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ 278,645.52 

ARCHITECT/ENGINEER CERTIFICATION: In my considered professional opinion, as Project 
Architect/Engineer, the prices quoted in this Change Order are both fair and reasonable and in 
the proper ratio to the cost of the original work contract under benefit of competitive bidding. 

Signature: ___ N __ /..;...A'---------------- Date: ----'N/:.:..A _____ _
Architect 

By execution of this Change Order, the Contractor acknowledges that all issues related to 
compensation and time have been resolved and payment recited herein is full compensation for 
the work identified in this Change Order. 

Date: May 5, 2025 

Date: 

APPROVED: Signature: ------------ Date: ___________ _ 
School Board Chairman 

M!S15010 

EFF 7/10/08 

Page 236 of 268

DRAFT



Page 237 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Lakeside Junior High School HVAC and Roof Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the 2024/2025 Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The project was competitively bid and was advertised
for three (3) consecutive weeks on the school district website. The bid opening was held June 10, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. The project
had four (4) bidders and all bidders met the bid requirements.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Lakeside Junior High School HVAC and Roof Repair/Replacement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Premier American Construction, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, in the base bid
amount of $2,800,000.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

LSJ HVAC & Roof Repair Replacement Contract

Page 238 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lsj-hvac-roof-repair-replacement-contract.pdf


Page 239 of 268

DRAFT



Page 240 of 268

DRAFT



Page 241 of 268

DRAFT



Page 242 of 268

DRAFT



Page 243 of 268

DRAFT



Page 244 of 268

DRAFT



Page 245 of 268

DRAFT



Page 246 of 268

DRAFT



Page 247 of 268

DRAFT



Page 248 of 268

DRAFT



Page 249 of 268

DRAFT



Page 250 of 268

DRAFT



Page 251 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Change Order #1 for Green Cove Springs Junior High School CTE Lab Upgrades

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for unforeseen conditions and owner requested changes.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $10,800.00. Architect fees contracted at 8% as result of this
change order. These funds are available and budgeted in Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 GCJ CTE Lab Upgrades

Page 252 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-gcj-cte-lab-upgrades.pdf


Page 253 of 268

DRAFT



Page 254 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Change Order #2 (Days Only) for Oakleaf Junior High School Classroom Addition

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for twenty-five (25) days to be added to the contract due to increased
procurement times for backordered materials for the project.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will not increase the contract amount. The substantial completion date will now be July 25, 2025.
Final completion date is October 23, 2025.  Architect fees will not increase as a result of this change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 (Days Only) OLJ Classroom Addition

Page 255 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-days-only-olj-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 256 of 268

DRAFT



Page 257 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Change Order #6 for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen Renovation

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for additional miscellaneous improvements and a covered walkway. An
addition eleven (11) days will be added to the contract.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #6.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $41,475.00. Architect fees contracted at 8% will increase by
$3,318.00 as a result of this change order. These funds are available and budgeted in Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #6 LSE Kitchen Renovation

Page 258 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-6-lse-kitchen-renovation.pdf


Page 259 of 268

DRAFT



Page 260 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires school boards to prequalify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for prequalification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their prequalification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently prequalified at the time of bidding may bid on a school board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Prequalification of Contractors is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor prequalification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for prequalification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached contractor prequalification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 8.7.2025

Page 261 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-872025.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Lance Addison, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Meyer Najem Construction, LLC General Contractor $250,000,000.00 August 31, 2026 

Hager Construction Company General, Roofing, 
Mechanical, and 

Underground Utility & 
Excavation Contractor 

$6,000,000.00 August 31, 2026 

 

Page 262 of 268

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

August 7, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Purchase Agreement for the Sale of Two (2) Relocatable Buildings at Oakleaf Junior High

Description
Relocatable buildings CI 2174 (DCA MBE 5141, Room 812) and CI 2214 (DCA MBE 5146, Room 813) at Oakleaf Junior High
School have reached their end-of-life and are beyond economical repair with no resale value.
The estimated cost to demolish these portables on-site and haul away the debris is approximately $20,000. Therefore, the most
economical method of disposal is to sell them to Pinewood Christian Academy for $10.00 each with the purchaser responsible
for all moving and removal expenses.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in an unnecessary financial burden on the district.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has approved the disposal of relocatable buildings in the past.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the purchase agreement to sell relocatable buildings CI 2174 (DCA MBE 5141,
Room 812) and CI 2214 (DCA MBE 5146, Room 813) at Oakleaf Junior High School.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the purchase agreement to sell relocatable buildings CI 2174 (DCA MBE 5141, Room 812) and CI 2214 (DCA MBE
5146, Room 813) at Oakleaf Junior High School.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904)336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904)336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net,
Paul Bement, Supervisor of Planning and Intergovernmental Relations, (904)336-6829, paul.bement@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The district will receive $10.00 for the sale of each of these relocatable buildings ($20.00 total).  The funds received shall credit
the fund originally sourced for the original acquisition per SREF 2.1(4)(a)-(h).

Review Comments

Attachments

250202_Pinewood_Christian_Academy_Relocatable_Sales_Contract .pdf

Page 263 of 268

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/local-copy-250202-pinewood-christian-accademy-v2.pdf


Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2020, SBAO (web) 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
           Contract #______________________

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.   

BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO  
NOT PLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL  

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
 Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00

Date Submitted: 

Name of Contract Initiator:     Telephone #: 

School/Dept Submitting Contract:      Cost Center # 

Vendor Name: 

Contract Title: 

Contract Type:   New □   Renewal □   Amendment □   Extension □      Previous Year Contract # 

Contract Term:     Renewal Option(s): 

Contract Cost: 

 BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

       Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 
       Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 

 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT  ‐ SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

 INTERNAL ACCOUNT ‐  IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO

 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE (when applicable): 
______ Completed Contract Review Form 
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School) 
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract)* 

*This Statement MUST BE included in the body of the  Contract: 
“The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall 
govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or conditions herein stated.”

______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements: 
     COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder.  Insurer must be rated as A‐ or better. 

General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate. 
Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum 
[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form.  If not exempt, vendor/contractor 

         must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 
______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ COVID‐19 Waiver (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ Release and Hold Harmless  (If Applicable) 
 

 **AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 

CONTRACT REVIEWED BY:  COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Department 

Review Date 

School Board Attorney 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

PENDING STATUS:  YES    NO  IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

FINAL STATUS  Pending Signatures

CONTRACT REVIEW 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

See comments & questions in yellow.

Page 264 of 268

DRAFT



Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2020, SBAO (web) 

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS 
 

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract 
(School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged) 

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District / School. 

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing Department.  
   Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may reach out to 

             Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.  SBAO 
             will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator. 

   Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
             Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.  

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes:  
             Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR  

   Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy. 

   If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 
   Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order.   Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order. 

Step 4:  If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO.  
    Email:  contractreview@myoneclay.net 
   The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator 

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts:
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3 

For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts.  Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to 
the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The term 
consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any 
non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name. All Board 
contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may 
extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o ________________ 
(insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of". 

All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing 
to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract. 

All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by the 
Board Chairman.  All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate 
District administrator based on the value of the contract.  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the   person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of the
contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a separate
entry as part of the monthly financial report.

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or
the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs.

3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized
Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals.

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was
previously approved by the Board.

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. 

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-6507 
For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-336-6745 
For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736 

Page 265 of 268

DRAFT



AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF PORTABLE SCHOOL CLASSROOMS AND 
WAIVER OF LIABILITY 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 7th day of August, 2025, by Pinewood Christian 
Academy (hereinafter “PURCHASER”) for the benefit and protection of CLAY COUNTY 
SCHOOL BOARD, CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA (hereinafter “BOARD”). 

WHEREAS, the BOARD has declared two portable classroom buildings identified as CI 
2174 (DCA MBE 5141, Room 812) and CI 2214 (DCA MBE 5146, Room 813), both located at 
Oakleaf Junior High, Orange Park, FL, to be unusable and surplus; and 

WHEREAS, the PURCHASER has determined that it can make use of said portable classroom 
buildings; and 

WHEREAS, the BOARD is willing to convey title to said portable classroom buildings to 
PURCHASER; and 

WHEREAS, the PURCHASER is willing to pay for and accept title to said portable classroom 
buildings in their "AS IS" condition. 

WHEREAS, PURCHASER acknowledges that they have had the opportunity to inspect the 
Property, or have waived their right to do so; and 

WHEREAS, PURCHASER understands and agrees that Seller makes no warranties or 
representations, express or implied, regarding the condition of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, PURCHASER desires to release Seller from any and all liability related to the 
condition of the Property; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the BOARD hereby conveys said portable 
classroom buildings designated as buildings numbered CI 2174, and CI 2214 for identification, to 
the PURCHASER for the sum of $20.00 (TWENTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS) in hand paid and 
for other valuable consideration subject to the following terms: 

1. The PURCHASER, for itself, its successors, and assigns, hereby releases and forever
discharges the BOARD, its officers, directors, employees, agents, successors, and assigns,
from any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, liabilities, damages, costs, and
expenses (including attorneys' fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever, whether known or
unknown, suspected or unsuspected, arising out of or in any way connected with the
condition of said buildings, including but not limited to:

a. Any defects, latent or patent, in the construction, design, or materials of said
buildings.

b. Any environmental conditions, including but not limited to, the presence of mold,
asbestos, lead-based paint, radon, soil contamination, or other hazardous materials.

Page 266 of 268

DRAFT



c. Any structural defects, including but not limited to, roof, walls, or framing issues.
d. Any defects in the mechanical, electrical, or plumbing systems of said buildings.
e. Any non-compliance with applicable building codes, zoning ordinances, or other

governmental regulations.
f. Any information or lack of information provided by the Seller regarding said

buildings.

2. The PURCHASER must sign this AGREEMENT, thereby taking title to said buildings
prior to removal of said buildings.

3. Using agents designated by Clay County School District Department of Planning and
Construction, the PURCHASER will remove said buildings from their current location and
relocate them to the PURCHASER’S property located at 198 Knight Boxx Road, Middleburg,
FL 32068.

4. The PURCHASER agrees that the BOARD shall incur no costs of any kind or nature
whatsoever resulting from the sale, removal, or relocation of said buildings.

5. In the event the PURCHASER does not accept said buildings in the timeframe chosen by
the Clay County School District Planning and Construction Department, the PURCHASER
forfeits all right to said buildings described herein and the BOARD may proceed with the
demolition of said structures with PURCHASER having no recourse or remedy in law or
equity for said action by the BOARD or its employees, agents, or contractors.

PURCHASER acknowledges that it is purchasing said buildings in their "AS IS, WHERE IS, 
WITH ALL FAULTS" condition. 

PURCHASER acknowledges that it has been advised to seek independent legal, environmental, 
engineering, and other professional advice regarding this transaction. 

PURCHASER acknowledges that it has read and understands this AGREEMENT and is signing 
it voluntarily. 

This AGREEMENT contains the full agreement of the parties, shall be strictly construed as to all 
times by which performance must take place and the terms of the AGREEMENT may not be 
amended or altered except in written form signed by representatives of both parties. 

EXECUTED this 7th day of August, 2025. 

Pinewood Christian Academy 

By ______________________________________ 

PURCHASER 

Page 267 of 268

DRAFT



The terms of this AGREEMENT are hereby
Acknowledged by the undersigned. 

By ____________________________ 
ERIN SKIPPER 
Title:  Owner’s Representative 
Clay County School Board  

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD, CLAY 
COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Page 268 of 268

DRAFT


